

# Measurement of Elemental and Organic Carbon in Europe

Thomas A.J. Kuhlbusch Annette Borowiak Andras Gelenscer Johan Genberg Dieter Gladtke Willy Maenhaut Casimiro Pio Olga Popoviecheva Jean P. Putaud Paul Quincey Jean Sciare Harry ten Brink Mar Viana Karl Espen Yttri

EUR – Scientific and Technical Research series – ISSN 1018-5593, ISBN 978-92-79-11294-2, DOI 10.2788/34791

November 2009

ECN-O--09-042



# Measurement of Elemental and Organic Carbon in Europe

Report of the preparatory workshop for a future standard measurement method

Thomas A.J. Kuhlbusch, Annette Borowiak, Andras Gelenscer, Johan Genberg, Dieter Gladtke, Willy Maenhaut, Casimiro Pio, Olga Popoviecheva, Jean P. Putaud, Paul Quincey, Jean Sciare, Harry ten Brink, Mar Viana, Karl Espen Yttri



© A. Gelenscer, University Pannonia

EUR 23992 EN - 2009





The mission of the JRC-IES is to provide scientific-technical support to the European Union's policies for the protection and sustainable development of the European and global environment.

European Commission Joint Research Centre Institute for Environment and Sustainability

#### **Contact information**

Address: T.P. 441 Via E. Fermi 2749 21027 Ispra (VA), Italy E-mail: annette.borowiak@jrc.ec.europa.eu Tel.: +39 0332 789956 Fax: +39 0332 785236

http://ies.jrc.ec.europa.eu/ http://www.jrc.ec.europa.eu/

#### Legal Notice

Neither the European Commission nor any person acting on behalf of the Commission is responsible for the use which might be made of this publication.

#### Europe Direct is a service to help you find answers to your questions about the European Union

Freephone number (\*):

#### 00 800 6 7 8 9 10 11

(\*) Certain mobile telephone operators do not allow access to 00 800 numbers or these calls may be billed.

A great deal of additional information on the European Union is available on the Internet. It can be accessed through the Europa server http://europa.eu/

JRC 54045

EUR 23992 EN ISBN 978-92-79-11294-2 ISSN 1018-5593 DOI 10.2788/34791

Luxembourg: Office for Official Publications of the European Communities

© European Communities, 2009

Reproduction is authorised provided the source is acknowledged

Printed in Italy

# Table of contents

| 1     | Foreword  | 3  |
|-------|---|----|
| 2     | Summaries of Presentations  | 4  |
| 2.1   | Introduction and Background to Measurement Techniques   | 4  |
| 2.2   | Atmospheric Soot Network: toward to development the EC/OC standard material                               | 7  |
| 2.3   | Principles of thermal methods for the detection and differentiation of EC and OC, intercomparison results | 9  |
| 2.4   | Artefacts in the sampling of OC   | 16 |
| 2.5   | Towards a Standardised Method for Measuring Organic and Elemental Carbon within the EUSAAR network        | 18 |
| 2.6   | OC/EC/TC analysis: the Spanish experience   | 20 |
| 2.7   | Measurement of carbonaceous aerosol by thermo-optical methods: The Portuguese experience                  | 22 |
| 2.8   | Measurements of Organic and Elemental Carbon in UK<br>AirQuality Networks                                 | 23 |
| 2.9   | Swedish experience - Eusaar_2 and <sup>14</sup> C   | 25 |
| 2.10  | Résumé  | 27 |
| Annex | The presentations   | 28 |
| A.1   | The European Ambient Air policy Implementation of AQ<br>Directive   | 28 |
| A.2   | EC/OC Workshop: Background and Introduction to<br>Measurement Techniques                                  | 31 |
| A.3   | Atmospheric Soot Network development of reference materials   | 46 |
| A.4   | Principles of thermal methods for the detection and differentiation of EC and OC, intercomparison results | 51 |

| A.5  | Artifacts during sampling  | 60  |
|------|--|-----|
| A.6  | Towards a Standardisation of Methods for Measuring<br>Organic and Elemental Carbon within the EUSAAR network | 67  |
| A.7  | Comparison of EC/OC analytical methods within EMEP   | 74  |
| A.8  | EC Measurement – Current VDI Guidelines  | 79  |
| A.9  | The "Hungarian" experience   | 83  |
| A.10 | OC/EC/TC analysis: the Spanish experience  | 85  |
| A.11 | Measurement of Carbonaceous Aerosol by Thermo-Optical<br>Methods: the Portuguese experience                  | 88  |
| A.12 | The French Contribution  | 95  |
| A.13 | Measurements of Organic and Elemental Carbon in UK Air<br>Quality Networks                                   | 101 |
| A.14 | Swedish experience Eusaar_2 source apportionment   | 106 |

# 1 Foreword

The EC/OC Workshop, a preparatory workshop for the future standard measurement method, was held in Ispra, Italy on 10<sup>th</sup> and 11<sup>th</sup> February 2008. More than 70 participants from 20 countries took part in this workshop and contributed to the discussion related to the main tasks:

- giving the general background on determination and quantification of elemental and organic carbon (EC + OC),
- collecting information on available measurement standards in Europe and worldwide,
- presenting and exchanging experiences in Europe related to the measurement of EC and OC,
- and discussing recommendation to be taken into account for the future measurement method.

The presentations on the first day covered all basic scientific and measurement technique relevant topics ranging from reference materials, discussion of optical and thermally based measurement methods, needs and design of round robin tests to assess uncertainties and reproducibility, artefacts during sampling and analysis, and their application at regional background sites within EMEP and EUSAAR.

The focus of the second day was more on national contributions and experiences which also covered a huge range of relevant information such as maintenance, reliability, temperature profiles, optical methods and the issue of brown carbon.

The organizers really thank all presenters but also all participants for their extremely valuable contributions to the success of this work shop which really helps to get a good kick-off for the standardisation work needed to be done.

Yours

Annette Borowiak and Thomas Kuhlbusch

# **Summaries of the Presentations**

# 2.1 Introduction and Background to Measurement Techniques

T.A.J. Kuhlbusch<sup>1</sup>, A. Petzold<sup>2</sup>, R. Hitzenberger<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Luftreinhaltung & Nachhaltige Nanotechnologie, IUTA e.V., Bliersheimerstr. 60, 47229 Duisburg, Germany, <u>tky@iuta.de</u>

<sup>2</sup> Deutsches Zentrum für Luft- und Raumfahrt (DLR), Institut für Physik der Atmosphäre, Oberpfaffenhofen, 82234 Wessling, Germany

<sup>3</sup> Aerosol, Bio- and Environmental Physics, Faculty of Physics, University of Vienna, Boltzmanngasse 5, A-1090 Vienna, Austria

# Introduction

Elemental and organic carbon (EC & OC) are two important components of airborne particulate matter. The importance is derived from their mass share of e.g. PM 10 and PM2.5, their property to absorb (EC) or scatter (EC and OC) light and their possible interference with human health. The latter point was the reason why the requirement of EC and OC measurements of PM was implemented for regional background stations in the new Air Quality Directive of the EU in 2008. The paper in combination with the slides of the presentation is intended to give a general background needed for the implementation of a WG for the standardisation of EC and OC measurements in PM in Europe.

# What is EC and OC? Where does it come from?

In his seminal book "Black Carbon in the Environment" Goldberg (1985) points out:

There is no clear definition of black carbon. It often is defined by scientists on the basis of their techniques of isolation and measurement. Despite the highly variable nature of black carbon we may describe it as a combustion derived carbon fraction of black color.

This statement, even though stemming from 1985, is still valid. It also has to be noted that Goldberg uses the term Black Carbon (BC) implying optical properties of this carbon fraction while other terms used are Elemental Carbon (EC), implying chemical purity like in graphite, or soot, some kind of incompletely combusted organic matter.

The lack of a clear definition and terminology leads to the current discussion and partial confusion on 'elemental carbon', the term used here. This discussion on EC is directly linked to organic carbon since for simplicity OC is generally defined as the difference between total carbon and the sum of elemental and inorganic carbon (EC + IC):

OC = TC - (EC + IC)

Nevertheless, some general standard methods and protocols exist (e.g. VDI, US EPA, EMEP, EUSAAR). Their intercomparability is currently at least debatable and may in some cases be poor, based on the different basic principles used for the differentiation of EC and OC. Since we agree with the statement by Goldberg (1985) that EC "is defined by scientists on the basis of their techniques of isolation and measurement, definition may be based on:

- the thermal stability of EC,
- the chemical nature of EC,
- the basic structure of EC,
- the optical properties of EC.

Sources of EC are generally any incomplete combustion processes either of anthropogenic or natural origin. This includes emission from e.g. diesel engines, gas burners, coal fired

power plants, domestic heating by e.g. wood combustion, or vegetation fires. This list can be extended, especially if "blackness" is used for the definition of EC, to degradation products of organic matter and vegetation fire residues.

Airborne organic particulate matter may be derived from direct, primary emission sources as well as from gaseous precursors while EC can only originate from primary emission. Direct particulate OC (POC) emission may be from incomplete combustion, (re)suspension of biological particles like spores, fungi, plant debris or abrasion products from e. g. tires and plastics. Similarly, anthropogenic and natural emissions also lead to particulate OC by the release of precursors (volatile organic carbon, VOC) and their subsequent conversion to POC. Sources here are e.g. incomplete combustion (diesel, vegetation fires etc.), biogenic emission (isoprenes etc.) and VOC from industry (refineries, dry cleaners etc.).

# Why do we want to measure EC and OC?

The main reasons for the determination of airborne elemental and organic carbon are based on the possible health and climatic implications. Elemental carbon is one of the few aerosol components with strong light absorbing properties, while OC and other aerosol constituents mainly scatter light. It has to be noted that the ratio of light scattering to extinction determines the "particle albedo". The particle single scattering albedo linked with the atmospheric PM load and the surface albedo determines whether the aerosol leads to cooling or warming of the atmosphere.

The other important implication of EC and OC are their possible implication on human health. This also is the background of why the measurement obligation to determine EC and OC was implemented in the new Air Quality Directive and why this workshop was set up. The background to possible health effects by EC and OC is based on several toxicological and epidemiological studies. There is no doubt that EC and OC from e.g. incomplete combustion processes lead to negative health effects but the mechanisms on how EC and OC interact with humans and the quantitative link to health effects is still not clear. Does EC from diesel, gasoline, gas and vegetation fires have the same exposure – response ratio?

# How can it be measured? What are the main principles?

Measurement methods for OC and EC must be based on their unique properties in comparison to the general matrix, here PM. Carbon in PM which can be determined by the measurement of e.g.  $CO_2$  after thermal treatment and oxidation can be separated into inorganic, organic and elemental carbon. Inorganic carbon (i.e. carbonates) can be quantified by acidification which leads to the release of carbonate carbon as  $CO_2$ . The interference in the determination of EC and OC caused by IC depends on the method and has to be dealt with separately.

As already stated above, quantification of OC is mainly based on the difference of TC and EC. Total carbon can only be determined by chemical analysis and is normally done by a total combustion technique (elemental analysis). Comparability exercises of the measurements of total particulate carbon showed generally good agreements within an uncertainty range of ca. 20% while the uncertainties are much higher for the measurements of EC.

Unique properties of EC have to be used for the separation of TC from EC. These properties can be summarized to specific optical properties (light absorption) and thermal stability (low volatility and higher combustion temperature). This already summarizes the two main measurement approaches for EC:

- techniques based on the measurement of light absorption,
- techniques based on the measurement of thermal stability of carbon.

Beside techniques solely based on one of those approaches also combinations of both exist. The presentation gives examples and describes the main techniques currently in use in Europe for the quantification of airborne EC with indication of their advantages and disadvantages.

# What are the measurement requirements?

The demands related to the measurement requirements are important to clarify which analysis method best fits the needs and where further tests are needed. The presentation therefore opened up the discussion on this topic. The summary of the results of the ongoing discussion is given in the Resume and recommendation section of this report. The questions raised with respect to standardisation were:

- on-line or off-line method?
- manual or automatic method?
- combined EC and OC method?
- optical or mass based method?
- comparability?
- repeatability?
- calibration / validation?
- artefacts during sampling

# 2.2 Atmospheric Soot Network: toward to development the EC/OC standard material

Popovicheva<sup>1</sup> O., Baumgardner<sup>2</sup> D., Puxbaum<sup>3</sup> H.

<sup>1</sup>SINP, Moscow State University, Russia
<sup>2</sup>Universidad Nacional Autónoma de Mexico, Mexico
<sup>3</sup>Technical University Vienna, Austria

Combustion carbonaceous aerosols, also known as soot, are one of the most important particulate species in the atmosphere because of its impact on climate on a global scale and health on a local scale. However, our current ability to predict environmental and health effects of soot emissions is strongly limited. There is no quantitative estimations of the soot exhaust effect from industry /commercial sources, transport, and domestic heating to compare it with natural sources from biomass burning and forest plumes.

There are many instruments to measure carbonaceous aerosols with various techniques but at the moment there is no standard reference material that can be use to calibrate these instruments. Therefore the uncertainty in measured combustion aerosols is estimated to be no better than ± 30-50% or even higher. At the moment, the users of these instruments rely upon the nominal calibrations provided by the manufacturer but that have not been commonly accepted. Lack of BC material for calibration instruments leads that many instruments in different laboratories are calibrated by different materials producing various results. Therefore, the technical challenge presently is to produce reference material of known composition and to be able to deliver it in a form that can be easily used in any of the various instruments that measure this quantity.

Combustion carbonaceous aerosols consist of a varying mixture of organic carbon and elemental carbon that depends upon the type of combustion and the age of the soot particles. The work of the EU commission on the EC/OC standardisation will soon start. Atmospheric Soot network (ASN) recommends a further task has to be considered, which is the development of standard material for the calibration of the standard EC/OC measurement method. The objective of this task proposes the manufacturing and testing reference material of precise elemental and organic carbon content for the purpose of calibrating instruments that measure soot for application air quality monitoring. There are currently no methods for producing soot particles of known characteristics, i.e. size, surface area, and composition. Hence, the development of atmospheric representative and accessible soot materials with reproducible "programmable" characteristics will ensure long-term intra and inter-laboratory data quality leading to a great progress by the entire environmental community in the measurement and monitoring soot aerosols.

ASN proposes to develop a Set of reference materials including graphitized soot as EC standard and OC tailored materials as EC/OC standards. They should be tested by many techniques for deriving soot mass concentrations, light absorption and EC/OC separation. The principle tasks to be performed are: 1) specification of characteristics for soot from various combustion sources, 2) manufacturer of test reference materials that meet the specifications, 3) development of soot delivery system, 4) round-robin testing of reference materials with instrumentation, 5) presentation of test results to the EC/OC standardisation commission.

To approach the objectives of CEN 264 activity ASN recommends the organization of the specially-oriented workshop on TC/EC/OC standards selection and preparation, which could support the commission on the EC/OC standardisation for prescribing the appropriate standards and intercomparison tests concerning the calibration technique of the standard EC/OC method and for potential equivalence testing.

The task of TC/EC/OC Reference Material preparatory workshop would be:

1. Presentation and identification of potential materials for TC/EC/OC testing and

standardization (main requirements for standard materials),

2. Discussion of ways for preparing reference quartz fiber filters,

3. Arrangement of the intercomparison compaing on proposed standard materials using the EC/OC and light absorption measurement techniques,

4. Recommendations to the EC/OC standardisation commission.

# 2.3 Principles of thermal methods for the detection and differentiation of EC and OC, intercomparison results

## Willy Maenhaut

Ghent University (UGent), Department of Analytical Chemistry, Institute for Nuclear Sciences, Proeftuinstraat 86, BE-9000 Gent

## 1. Introduction

Carbonaceous aerosols consist of organic carbon (OC), elemental carbon (EC) or black carbon (BC), and inorganic carbonate carbon (CC). EC and BC are used to denote roughly the same refractory and light-absorbing fraction of the carbonaceous matter; when this fraction is determined with a thermal method it is normally termed EC and when it is measured with an optical method it is normally denoted as BC. The distinction between OC and EC or BC is, however, not sharp; from a thermochemical point of view there is a transition region of refractory organic carbon in between OC and EC and from an optical viewpoint there is coloured organic carbon (or brown carbon) in between OC and BC [Pöschl, 2003]. Depending on the method of analysis or the operational parameters, different amounts of carbon from refractory and coloured organic compounds are included in OC and EC or BC. The distinction between OC and EC or BC is generally simpler for urban aerosol samples than for rural samples and it is especially difficult for aerosol samples that are impacted by biomass burning (e.g., wood smoke). However, also for urban samples, different methods can provide substantial differences for the EC (or BC) fraction of the carbonaceous matter, as was for example demonstrated in the aerosol carbon round robin exercise that was organised by TU Vienna 10 years ago [Schmid et al., 2001].

## 2. Thermal analysis of atmospheric particulate matter for OC and EC

For thermal analysis of atmospheric particulate matter (PM) one normally collects the aerosol with a filter sampler using quartz fibre filters or occasionally with a cascade impactor with aluminium foils or quartz fibre filters as impaction surfaces and the thermal analysis of the samples is carried out in the laboratory. However, there are also instruments such as the Rupprecht & Patashnick Series 5400 Aerosol Carbon Particulate Monitor (now not sold anymore) or the Sunset Laboratory Carbon Aerosol Analysis Field Instrument, which perform thermal analyses of aerosols for OC and EC in situ and in real time. The principles used in these thermal in-situ instruments are the same as in the thermal laboratory instruments and no further discussion of the in-situ instruments will be given here.

The thermal methods used in the laboratory instruments can be classified in three categories, i.e., (1) simple thermal methods, (2) two-step thermal methods, and (3) thermal-optical methods. Methods of all three categories were applied in the above-mentioned aerosol carbon round robin exercise of Schmid et al. [2001] and their principles and literature references for them are given in this publication. Here, one or two examples are given for each category of methods and the principles involved are briefly described.

As indicated above, carbonaceous aerosols contain in addition to OC and EC, also CC, so that total carbon (TC) = OC+EC+CC. Unless the CC is removed prior to the thermal analysis, it is generally included in either the OC or the EC measurement. For fine aerosols (e.g., PM2.5) CC is often small or negligible, but for PM10 and especially Total Suspended Particulate (TSP), it may be substantial.

## 2.1. Simple thermal methods

An example of a simple thermal method is that developed at TU Vienna [Puxbaum, 1979]. The sample (or a fraction of it) is subjected to a constantly increasing temperature  $(20^{\circ}\text{C min}^{-1})$  up to a maximum temperature of  $800^{\circ}\text{C}$  in a pure O<sub>2</sub> stream. The evolving carbonaceous vapours are converted into CO<sub>2</sub> by a MnO<sub>2</sub> catalyst (held at 700°C) and the CO<sub>2</sub> is measured with a non-dispersive infrared (NDIR) detector. The last peak(s) in the thermogram (thus at high temperature) is (are) considered to represent EC, whereas the earlier peaks are considered as OC. The quantification is done by determining the area under the peaks and the instrument is calibrated with samples of known amounts of carbon (e.g., sucrose).

Besides NDIR, also other detection methods can be used for measuring the  $CO_2$  in simple thermal methods or in the other thermal methods. The  $CO_2$  can be measured by coulometric titration [Cachier et al., 1989] or it can be converted into  $CH_4$  and the latter can be measured with a flame ionisation detector (FID).

A first limitation of the simple thermal methods is that some of the organic matter may be converted into pyrolytic carbon (PC) by pyrolysis or charring and like the "real" EC only be converted into vapour at higher temperature and then erroneously be counted as EC. Incidentally, this limitation applies also to the two-step thermal methods. The artifact formation of PC is smaller in an oxidising atmosphere (O<sub>2</sub>) than in an inert gas (He, N<sub>2</sub>, Ar). A second limitation is that the presence of inorganic cations, such as K<sup>+</sup> or Na<sup>+</sup> (which are important components in biomass burning samples), has a serious influence on the thermal evolution of the carbonaceous vapours. As a result, the peaks come faster in the thermogram and the distinction of EC from OC may be quite difficult to make. In order to improve the determination of EC, the sample is often subjected to an aqueous extraction (which removes the water-soluble OC and the cations) prior to the thermal analysis.

### 2.2. Two-step thermal methods

A first example of a two-step thermal method is that developed by Cachier et al. [1989]. In this method, the samples are first subjected to a pretreatment in HCl vapour to remove the inorganic carbonates. For the measurement of EC, one part of the sample then subjected to a thermal pretreatment step (precombustion at  $340^{\circ}$ C for 2 h) in order to remove the organic component. The remaining EC is determined by combustion at  $1100^{\circ}$ C and coulometric titration of the evolved CO<sub>2</sub> in a carbon analyzer (Ströhlein Coulomat 702C). For another part of the sample, the combustion/titration is performed without any thermal pretreatment, so that the content of TC is obtained. The difference (TC - EC) then yields OC.

Another example is the VDI-2 method, as used at the Leibniz Institute for Tropospheric Research (IfT) in Leipzig, Germany [Neusüß et al., 2002; Plewka et al., 2004]. This method is a two-step thermographic method, which uses a commercial carbon analyser C-mat 5500 (Ströhlein, Germany); the analyser consists of a free programmable combustion furnace (IR 05) followed by a resistance oven (D03 GTE) holding the CuO catalyst at 850°C (to convert carbon quantitatively to  $CO_2$ ) and a NDIR detector measuring the IR absorption of the  $CO_2$  formed. In the first step, the sample is heated at 590°C (or 650°C) in nitrogen carrier gas for OC volatilisation and in the second step, EC is combusted at 650°C in an oxygen atmosphere. In between the two steps, the IR furnace is cooled down to 50°C to avoid EC losses during flushing with oxygen.

### 2.3. Thermal-optical methods

Examples of thermal-optical methods are those of Desert Research Institute (DRI) [Chow et al., 1993] and of Sunset Laboratory [Birch and Cary, 1996]. Traditionally, DRI makes use of a thermal-optical reflectance (TOR) correction and Sunset Laboratory of a thermal-optical transmission (TOT) correction, but both have now instruments where simultaneous TOR and TOT corrections are possible. Here, we describe the TOT instrument of Sunset Laboratory. A punch of 1.5 or 1.0 cm<sup>2</sup> of the guartz fibre filter sample is placed in the guartz oven of the instrument. In the first phase of the analysis, which takes place in a pure He gas stream, the filter punch is heated in 4 steps up to a temperature of 870°C (or 900°C); the desorbed carbonaceous vapours are catalytically oxidised into  $CO_2$  (by a  $MnO_2$ ) catalyst held at 870°C); the CO<sub>2</sub> formed is reduced to CH<sub>4</sub> (in a Ni-firebrick methanator, held at 500°C) and the latter is subsequently measured with an FID. Laser light (of 670 nm) is continuously passed through filter punch and the light transmission is continuously measured. During this first phase of the analysis, part of the OC is pyrolysed (charred) with formation of PC, so that the light transmission through the filter punch decreases. At the end of the first phase, the filter punch is slightly cooled. In the second phase, which takes place with a 98%He/2%O<sub>2</sub> mixture as carrier gas, the filter punch is in four (or more) steps further heated to e.g. 900°C and otherwise everything is the same as for the first phase. When the light transmission through the filter punch equals that seen at the beginning of the first phase, the OC/EC split is set; the CO<sub>2</sub> measured in the first phase and during the second phase prior to the split is considered as OC (it includes the PC) and the CO<sub>2</sub> measured after the split is considered as the "real" EC. The total CO<sub>2</sub> measured during the second phase (which represents the sum of PC + "real" EC) corresponds to the EC, which is measured without optical correction [Schmid et al., 2001]. After the end of the second phase, while still in a  $He/O_2$  mixture, a known amount of  $CH_4$  gas is injected through a loop; this serves for internal calibration. An example of a TOT thermogram (without the internal calibration peak) as obtained with the NIOSH protocol is shown in Figure 1.



Figure 1. TOT thermogram, obtained with an instrument from Sunset Laboratory and the NIOSH temperature protocol, for an urban PM2.5 quartz fibre filter sample collected at Ghent.

## 3. Intercomparison results

3.1. Dependence on operational parameters. Intercomparison of four temperature protocols in TOT for five sample sets

At University Gent we have two TOT laboratory instruments from Sunset Laboratory. Our instrument A was acquired in December 1997 and instrument B in September 2002. It was examined to what extent the OC, EC, and TC data depend on the temperature protocol and whether the two instruments provide comparable results. This exercise was done for five sample sets and for four different temperature protocols, and each sample of each sample set was analyzed with each instrument and each of the protocols. The sample sets consisted of (1) TSP samples collected during 2003 in Beijing, (2) PM2.5 samples from a 2003 winter campaign in Ghent, (3) TSP samples from southern Austria taken in 1999, (4) PM2.5 samples from a 2003 summer campaign at K-puszta, Hungary, and (5) PM2.5 samples from a pasture site in Amazonia taken in 2002 during the dry (biomass burning) season. All samples had been collected on guartz fibre filters (pre-fired Pall filters in the case of the PM2.5 samples). The four analysis temperature programs were (1) our "standard" program (ST), which is the program that we used in the aerosol carbon round robin [Schmid et al., 2001], (2) a program called NIOSH2 (N2), which is very similar to the ACE-Asia base case program of Schauer et al. [2003] and identical to the NIOSH program used for Figure 1, (3) the EUSAAR 2 (E2) protocol, which has been developed within the EU project "European Supersites for Atmospheric Aerosol Research" (EUSAAR), and (4) a program called ACE-Asia alternate3 (A3), which is identical to the one used by Schauer et al. [2003] and is a proxy for the DRI IMPROVE program. The maximum temperatures during the first stage (in pure He) of the analysis for the four programs are 900, 870, 650, and 550°C, respectively, and the durations of the four programs, including the CH<sub>4</sub> internal calibration phase, are 620, 775, 1170, and 780 s, respectively. The ranges for TC (in  $\mu$ g/cm<sup>2</sup>) and for the EC/TC ratio, as obtained with program ST and instrument B for each sample set, are given in Table 1; also the number of samples within each set is indicated in the Table.

Table 1. Ranges for TC and for EC/TC, obtained with our program ST, and mean ratios (and assoc. std. dev.) to program ST for EC/TC for programs N2, E2, and A3 for five series of aerosol filter samples and instrument B. The ratios to ST for EC/TC were calculated per sample and then averaged over all samples of the same series.

| Sample   | no. of  | Range                    | Range        | Mean ratio | s to program ST | for EC/TC  |  |
|----------|---------|--------------------------|--------------|------------|-----------------|------------|--|
| series   | samples | TC (µg/cm <sup>2</sup> ) | EC/TC        | N2         | E2              | A3         |  |
| Beijing  | 5       | 71 –240                  | 0.15 – 0.24  | 1.15± 0.05 | 1.72± 0.20      | 2.02± 0.45 |  |
| Ghent    | 26      | 15 –110                  | 0.084- 0.35  | 1.04± 0.14 | 1.70± 0.41      | 1.72± 0.26 |  |
| Austria  | 16      | 18 - 40                  | 0.076-0.13   |            | 1.21± 0.25      | 1.53± 0.24 |  |
| K-puszta | 5       | 16 – 25                  | 0.038- 0.056 | 1.38± 0.02 | 1.51± 0.15      | 1.92± 0.15 |  |
| Amazon   | 5       | 57 – 98                  | 0.021-0.031  | 1.35± 0.07 | 2.67± 0.43      | 2.90± 0.31 |  |

It turned out that the TC data obtained with our two instruments agreed well (typically within better than 10%) and that the various protocols provided similar TC data; one major exception existed for our instrument A in combination with protocol E2, the TC data of this combination were substantially lower (by up to 40%) than those obtained with E2 and our instrument B or with both instruments and the other three programs. It was noted that, for actual aerosol filter samples, the time lag between the last peak in the thermogram and the  $CH_4$  internal calibration peak was substantially shorter for E2 than for the other three protocols and that the valley in between that last peak and the  $CH_4$  internal calibration peak did not come down deep enough for our instrument A. The calculation program that is provided by Sunset Laboratory calculates the area under the peaks in the thermogram by

subtracting a linear sloped background (baseline). This background is obtained from a number of channels at the start of the thermogram and a number of channels before the CH<sub>4</sub> internal calibration peak. If the valley before the latter peak is not deep enough, as was the case for E2 with our instrument A, then the background is overestimated and TC is underestimated. We obtained a modified calculation program from Sunset Laboratory, whereby there is an option to keep the background linear and constant and to estimate it from the initial channels in the thermogram. By performing the calculations with this option and the modified program, correct TC data were obtained for E2 and our instrument A. It is clear that the last temperature step in E2 is not kept on long enough. It is suggested to extend the duration of this step by at least 50 s, and possibly by 100 s in order to avoid problems. This extension will unfortunately make that E2 will become even longer; it is now already by far the longest of the four protocols.

The EC/TC ratios obtained with the four protocols were compared with each other. This comparison was done in terms of ratios to the EC/TC ratios obtained with ST. The ratios (of EC/TC ratios) were calculated on a sample by sample basis and then averaged over all samples of same sample set (and separately for each of the two instruments). The results obtained with instrument B are included in Table 1. It is clear that the lowest EC/TC ratios were obtained with ST and that A3 provided the highest ratios. There was clearly an inverse relationship between the EC/TC ratio and the maximum temperature during the first phase of the analysis. This is illustrated in Figure 2, which shows for each of the five sample sets the average EC/TC ratio as a function of that maximum temperature. It is clear from both Table 1 and Figure 2 that the lowest difference in EC/TC ratios between the four protocols is obtained for the rural samples from Austria. The largest difference exists for the biomass burning impacted samples from Amazonia. The urban samples from Beijing and Ghent and the samples from K-puszta show a behaviour which is intermediate between that of the Austrian and Amazonian samples.



Figure 2. Average EC/TC ratio as a function of maximum temperature in the first phase (in pure He) of the analysis protocol. The average EC/TC ratios are indicated by the symbols and are also given in numeric form. The four analysis protocols from left to right are A3, E2, N2 and ST. All data were obtained with our instrument B.

It should be noted that the EC/TC ratio does not only depend on the analysis temperature protocol, but also on the type of optical correction used. For the same protocol, different EC/TC ratios are obtained with TOR and TOT; there is a tendency for larger EC/TC ratios in TOR than in TOT.

# 3.2. Intercomparison of EC and BC results from thermal and optical methods for a 2006 winter campaign in Vienna

Several thermal and optical methods for measuring EC and BC were compared during a 2006 winter campaign that took place from 7 February to 15 March on a rooftop of the University of Vienna. The results of this study are described in detail by Reisinger et al. [2008]. Here, only a brief presentation is given. Three optical methods for measuring BC and four thermal methods for measuring EC were used in the study; the optical methods were a light transmission method (LTM), the multi-angle absorption photometer (MAAP), and the integrating sphere (IS) method; the thermal methods were TOM-TU, the two-step method of Cachier et al. [1989], and TOT with the N2 and A3 protocols. TOM-TU is a modification of the simple thermal method described in section 2.1; it was extended with an optical transmission correction. The samples for the thermal methods were 24-hour PM10 quartz fibre filter samples, with filter change nominally at 13:00 UTC. On certain days, i.e., for the 4-day period from 23 to 27 February, very substantial differences were found between the EC data of the four thermal methods, with TOM-TU and the two-step Cachier method providing much larger data than A3 and N2. The 4-day period turned out to be a cold period in which 24-h averaged temperatures dropped to -4°C and in which wood burning for space heating was prominent in the surroundings of Vienna. By adapting the IS method so that it could differentiate between BC-brown, which is ascribed to the wood burning, and BC-black, which originates mainly from diesel fuel, it was found that the BC-brown levels were indeed enhanced in the 4-day period. The BC-black levels for these 4 days agreed well with the EC data obtained by A3.

## References

Birch, M. E., and R. A. Cary (1996), Elemental carbon-based method for monitoring occupational exposures to particulate diesel exhaust, Aerosol Sci. Technol., 25, 221-241.

Cachier, H., M. P. Bremond, and P. Buat-Ménard (1989), Determination of atmospheric soot carbon with a simple thermal method, Tellus, 41B, 379-390.

Chow, J. C., J. G. Watson, L. C. Pritchett, W. R. Pierson, C. A. Frazier, and R. G. Purcell (1993), The DRI thermal/optical reflectance carbon analysis system: description, evaluation and application in US Air Quality Studies, Atmos. Environ., 27A, 1185-1201.

Neusüß, C., T. Gnauk, A. Plewka, H. Herrmann, and P. K. Quinn (2002), Carbonaceous aerosol over the Indian Ocean: OC/EC fractions and selected specifications from size segregated onboard samples, J. Geophys. Res., 107(D19), 8031, doi:10.1029/2001JD000327.

Plewka, A., T. Gnauk, E. Brüggemann, C. Neusüß, and H. Herrmann (2004), Size-resolved aerosol characterization for a polluted episode at the IfT research station Melpitz in autumn 1997, J. Atmos. Chem., 48, 131-156.

Pöschl, U. (2003), Aerosol particle analysis: challenges and progress, Anal. Bioanal. Chem., 375, 30-32.

Puxbaum, H. (1979), Thermo-Gasanalysator zur Charakterisierung von Kohlenstoff- und Schwefelverbindungen in luftgetragenen Stäuben, Fresenius Z. Anal. Chemie, 298, 250-259.

Reisinger, P., A. Wonaschütz, R. Hitzenberger, A. Petzold, H. Bauer, N. Jankowski, H. Puxbaum, X. Chi, and W. Maenhaut (2008), Intercomparison of measurement techniques for black or elemental carbon under urban background conditions in wintertime: Influence of biomass combustion, Environ. Sci. Technol., 42, 884-889.

Schauer, J. J., B. T. Mader, J. T. Deminter, G. Heidemann, M. S. Bae, J. H. Seinfeld, R. C. Flagan, R. A. Cary, D. Smith, B. J. Huebert, T. Bertram, S. Howell, J. T. Kline, P. Quinn, T. Bates, B. Turpin, H. J. Lim, J. Z. Yu, H. Yang, and M. D. Keywood (2003), ACE-Asia intercomparison of a thermal-optical method for the determination of particle-phase organic and elemental carbon, Environ. Sci. Technol., 37, 993-1001.

Schmid, H., L. Laskus, H. J. Abraham, U. Baltensperger, V. Lavanchy, M. Bizjak, P. Burba, H. Cachier, D. Crow, J. Chow, T. Gnauk, A. Even, H. M. ten Brink, K. P. Giesen, R. Hitzenberger, C. Hueglin, W. Maenhaut, C. Pio, A. Carvalho, J. P. Putaud, D. Toom-Sauntry, and H. Puxbaum (2001), Results of the "carbon conference" international aerosol carbon round robin test stage I, Atmos. Environ., 35, 2111-2121.

# 2.4 Artefacts in the sampling of OC

Harry ten Brink

Energy-research Centre of the Netherlands (ECN), Petten, the Netherlands

# INTRODUCTION

OC/EC is (typically) sampled with quartz fibre filters. There are two types of artefacts associated with this sampling:

### 1) The filters adsorb of volatile OC-components; the so-called positive artefact

### 2) Collected semi-volatile components evaporate; a "negative" artefact.

Adsorption and evaporation proceed at the same time because different OC-components are involved. A comprehensive review of the artefacts is provided by Turpin et al. (2000). As an introduction I recommend a presentation from which I took a number of sheets:

## gonzalo.er.anl.gov/ACP/2002presentations/Novakov02.pdf

There are sophisticated ways to deal with the artefacts that e will discuss below. These show that the adsorption artefact is the most important. It is also seen that the amount of artefact OC does <u>not</u> follow the volume of air sampled. In other words, the relative contribution of artefact OC decreases with increasing sampling volume.

EN-12341 requires the use of quartz fibre filters for the determination of PM10-mass. Thus a large number of have been taken in the EU. The OC-artefact must have lead to an artificial increase in the amount of PM10. However, we could not find documentation on the importance of this artefact.

## Field blanks

A minimum value for the adsorption artefact is found in the values in the so-called field blanks. These are filters that are put in the sample holders without being loaded. The filters take up OC via diffusion, that is, by just being passively exposed to ambient air. The networks in the US report field blanks that are large in comparison with the actual OC-data. Only some scattered data are available in Europe. We just finished a study in which sampling was performed with automated KFG-samplers. 150 field blanks were taken. The average OC-value of these field blanks corresponded to a concentration of **1.3** ug m-3.

## Lot blanks

Filters received from the manufacturer often contain OC and they are therefore cleaned in scientific studies. This is done by pre-firing. Whatman-QMA filters are pre-fired in the factory. We analysed OC in a large number of such Whatman-QMA. These "lot"-blanks were unsealed only shortly before analysis. Filters from the top of a stack contained OC values higher than that of the average field blank. Further down the values rapidly decreased to often insignificant values.

# ASSESSMENT AND AVOIDANCE OF THE ARTEFACTS

Lot-blanks should be tested before use. Filters may have to be pre-fired; cooling in a wet atmosphere pacifies the surface (advice of Puxbaum). A first indication of the magnitude of the sampling artefact is provided by the field blank.

For an assessment and quantification of the sampling artefacts there are several methods in use for which we also provide the name of the respective institute / scientist using these:

1. **Filter-pack** / tandem filters / 2 filters in series; the amount of OC in the 2d filter is a first measure for the sampling artefact in the first filter (*EMEP*, *Sillanpää*).

2. A gas-denuder to remove the adsorptive volatile OC (Maenhaut / Viana).

3. **Impregnation** of the second filter to collect the semi-volatile OC that evaporates from the first filter, to correct for the negative artefact (*Putaud*).

ad 1. **Teflon-quartz** filter-pack; in a parallel sampling line. The Teflon filter does not adsorb OC; the OC on the quartz back-up filter is a (better) measure for the adsorption artefact (*Vecchi*)

# SUGGESTION FOR ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED IN THE WORK-GROUP

1. Filter type: EN-14907 allows glass fibre; OC/EC analysis is possible

2. Combination of mass-determination and OC/EC-analysis for the same (quartz) filter

3. Brand of quartz-filter; there are different brands with possibly different blank characteristics

- 4. Amount of air drawn through the filters. This affects the ratio of artefact OC and real OC
- 5. Filter-packs to correct for the artefacts, specifically for source apportionment
- 6. **Denuders** to remove volatile OC
- 7. **Pre-firing** and, if so, what protocol.

#### Addendum: automated on-line instruments

Artefact formation can be easily checked in automated instruments. This is done by periodically placing an absolute filter in the sampling line. Own experience was not encouraging in this respect. The ACPM's (R&P 5400) tested had a large and irreproducible artefact.

Artefacts with filters can be avoided by collecting PM differently. There is an instrument for artefactfree sampling of the (semi-volatile) nitrate. The collection occurs via condensation of steam. The nitrate is analysed in the collected condense-water. In this water also OC can be measured.

# References

Kuhlbusch et al. 1998. Sources, determination, monitoring, and transport of carbonaceous aerosols in Mainz, Germany. Atmos. Environ. 32, 1097-1110

ten Brink, Maenhaut, W., Hitzenberger, R., Gnauk, T., Spindler, G., Even, A., Chi, X., Bauer, H., Puxbaum, H., Putaud, J.-P., Tursic, J., Berner, A. 2004. *Comparability of methods in use in Europe for measuring the carbon content of aerosol*. Atmos. Environ. 38, 6507-6519

Turpin et al., 2000. *Measuring and simulating particulate organics in the atmosphere: problems and prospects*. Atmos. Environ. 34, 2983-3013

Vecchi et al. 2009. Organic and inorganic sampling artefacts assessment. Atmos. Environ. 43, 1713-1720

Viana, Maenhaut et al. 2007 Comparative analysis of Organic and Elemental Carbon concentrations in carbonaceous aerosols in three European cities. Atmos. Environ. 41, 5972-5983

Yttri et al. 2007. Elemental and organic carbon in  $PM_{10}$ : a one year measurement campaign within the European Monitoring and Evaluation Programme EMEP. Atmos. Chem. Phys. 7, 5711-5725

# 2.5 Towards a Standardised Method for Measuring Organic and Elemental Carbon within the EUSAAR network

J.P. Putaud and F. Cavalli

European Commission, DG JRC, Institute for Environment and Sustainability, I-21027 Ispra (Va)

The current European Directive on ambient air quality (2008/50/EC) states that measurements shall be made at rural background locations for providing information on the chemical speciation of fine particulate matter (PM<sub>2.5</sub>). Carbonaceous matter accounts for 45 ± 20 % of PM<sub>2.5</sub> (ref.?) across Europe. A reference method for monitoring this important PM constituent is however lacking. EUSAAR aims at improving the quality of the measurements of non-regulated aerosol properties of interest to air pollution and climate change issues. The analytical protocol for carbonaceous PM "EUSAAR 2" copes with a series of requirements that a reference method should meet, including:

## 1- A robust determination of the total carbon (TC) concentration.

TC can directly be determined using thermal methods: PM samples collected on e.g. quartz fiber filters are exposed to increasing temperature (up to 850°C) so that carbonaceous species are all volatilized and/or oxidized to CO<sub>2</sub>, which is directly or indirectly detected. The analytical protocol EUSAAR\_2 includes the determination of TC through a straightforward calibration using gases and solutions containing inorganic or organic carbon.

## 2- A pragmatic speciation of TC.

Atmospheric carbonaceous PM consists of hundreds of different molecules. Labor-intensive combinations of the most advanced analytical techniques can resolve and quantify up to ca. 30% of the TC mass. These techniques are therefore not suitable for monitoring. However, it is important to go for TC speciation, particularly to distinguish between elemental carbon (EC), directly emitted in the particulate form by combustion processes, and organic carbon (OC), that arises from both natural and anthropogenic [primary and secondary] sources. However, it is difficult to make a clear distinction between highly refractory organic molecules and pure EC.

Thermal analytical techniques split TC fractions according to their volatility. In an inert atmosphere (step 1), just OC volatilizes. EC is combusted to  $CO_2$  during step 2 in an oxidizing atmosphere. The highest temperature reached during step 1 is critical. If it is too low (550°C like in the <u>IMPROVE</u> protocol), a fraction of OC (up to 40%) does not evolve during step 1 and could be detected as EC. If it is too high (850°C like in the <u>NIOSH</u> protocol), as much as 21.2±4.4% of EC could be combusted during step 1 and be detected as OC. The compromise (650°C) chosen in the <u>EUSAAR 2</u> protocol ensures that a maximum of 2.5±2.4% of EC will be combusted during the analytical step 1, and a minimum of 80% of even high molecular mass organic molecules (humic-like substances) are volatilised or charred (see point 3) during step 1.

## 3- A correction for charring

Instead of volatilizing, some organic molecules polymerize and form a highly refractory black species during temperature ramps (charring). This pyrolitic carbon (PC) would be detected as EC. Not correcting for charring can lead to analytical errors in the determination of atmospheric EC larger than 400% (EUSAAR\_2 intercomp'2007).

Thermal-optical analytical techniques monitor charring by recording the decrease in light transmission and/or reflection through the filter during the analysis. As  $O_2$  is added to the carrier gas, refractory black PC and EC are combusted and light transmission and reflection gradually increase again. When light transmission or reflection reaches the value recorded

before the analysis starts, it is considered that all PC formed from OC during the analysis has evolved and that all carbon evolving afterwards is atmospheric EC.

# 4- A limitation of charring

To discriminate between artificially formed PC and native atmospheric EC, thermal–optical methods assume that one of the following two hypotheses is correct:

- (a) PC evolves from the filter before EC during the analysis.
- (b) PC has the same specific light absorption cross section ( $\sigma$ ) as EC.

However, none of these assumptions always holds: PC and EC have been shown to coevolve, and PC's  $\sigma$  was found to be generally larger than EC's. Temperature programs should therefore aim at reducing the amount of charring to a minimum. Longer steps at low temperature (120 s @ 200°C, and 150 s @ 300°C) as in the EUSAAR\_2 protocol reduce charring by 16% on average compared to e.g. the <u>NIOSH</u> protocol.

## 5- A low sensitivity of the EC value to the split point position

The transmission or reflection threshold value which is used to split between PC and EC is known with an uncertainty of ca.  $\pm 3\%$ . To minimize the effect of this uncertainty on EC determination, the temperature protocol should be such that the amount of carbon evolving at the split point is as little as possible.

The <u>EUSAAR 2</u> protocol includes three temperature plateaus in the analytical step 2, where the split point occurs, which increases the chance of having a smooth evolution of carbon around the split point. Over 9 samples collected in Ispra (semi-rural site in Italy), an uncertainty of  $\pm 3\%$  in the determination of the laser signal threshold translated in an acceptable uncertainty of  $\pm 10\%$  in EC determination.

## Conclusion

While alternative methods could be more precise, accurate, and/or rigorous on specific aspects of the determination of OC and EC in atmospheric PM, a thermal-optical method implementing the newly optimized temperature protocol <u>EUSAAR 2</u> fulfills a series of requirements that makes it highly suitable for the monitoring of OC and EC concentrations in  $PM_{2.5}$  in Europe.

A recent intercomparison demonstrated that 5 among 6 EUSAAR partners using this protocol could determine TC and EC/TC with relative errors <17 and 29%, respectively, a fraction of this difference being possibly due to filter heterogeneity. Furthermore, using <u>EUSAAR 2</u>, the amount of PC determined optically (integrating the laser signal) and thermal-optically (integrating the CO<sub>2</sub> signal up to the laser-determined split point) well agree (R<sup>2</sup> = 0.75, n = 224) for filter loads <25  $\mu$ g/cm<sup>2</sup>, which guarantees the accuracy of the EC (and therefore OC) determination.

# 2.6 OC/EC/TC analysis: the Spanish experience

M. Viana\*, A. Alastuey, X. Querol

Institute for Environmental Assessment and Water Research (IDAEA-CSIC) \* mviana@ija.csic.es / mar.viana@idaea.csic.es

EC/OC Workshop, February 11th, 2009, Ispra

At present, OC and EC analyses are carried out in Spain at two research institutions:

- ISCIII (National Health Institute) in Madrid, where a TOT Sunset OCEC Analyzer was acquired and runs since May 2006 (using the quartz.par protocol)

- IJA/IDAEA-CSIC (Spanish Research Council) in Barcelona, where a TOT Sunset OCEC Analyzer was acquired and runs since July 2007 (currently using the EUSAAR2.par)

The acquisition of a third TOT Sunset OCEC Analyzer is currently in process at the Huelva University. In addition, numerous TC analysers (CHNS analyzers, etc.) are available in laboratories throughout Spain.

Prior to the use of Sunset instruments for OCEC determination, analyses were carried out at the laboratories of Prof. C. Pio at Aveiro University, Dr. JP. Putaud at JRC Ispra and Prof. W. Maenhaut at Ghent University. At these laboratories and since 2002, samples were run from various Spanish sites in order to obtain preliminary estimations of OC and EC concentrations as well as to assess the influence of sampling artefacts. The results obtained were published in a number of SCI papers (Rodríguez et al., 2007; Viana et al., 2006, 2007).

At IJA/IDAEA-CSIC, on average 1200-1500 samples are currently run per year originating from a large variety of monitoring environments: regional and urban background sites, as well as traffic and industrial hotspots. Therefore, the PM mixtures analysed significantly differ from each other with respect to PM loading and chemical composition. The samples originate from high- and low-volume samplers (with and without denuders), and they are collected on Munktell and Pallflex substrates.

Regarding the daily run of the instrument, since July 2007 the only major incidence registered at the IJA/IDAEA-CSIC lab refers to the combustion oven, given that a progressive increase in the pressure in the combustion oven was observed (PSIG increased from 1 to 3 in 9 months). As shown in Figure 1, this increase is slow at the start but grows exponentially after 3-4 months. Consequently, in our case the oven had to be completely removed and substituted by a new one, and this process was repeated 2 times in 1.5 years.



Figure 1. Progressive increase in the pressure in the combustion oven.

Potential causes of this incidence are the type of samples analysed (e.g., samples from a ceramic production area with high % of refractory material), and/or the use of HCl to eliminate carbonate carbon (which seemed to be extremely harmful to the instrument).

Another incidence observed was the increase in the variability of sucrose concentrations if the instrument is not run continuously. The standard deviation of the samples increased from

0.1  $\mu$ g/ $\mu$ l when the instrument was run continuously, to 0.64  $\mu$ g/ $\mu$ l after a 15-day analysis gap.

The analytical protocol used by the IJA/IDAEA-CSIC lab was the default Quartz.par from the installation of the instrument until April 2008, when preliminary tests were carried out using EUSAAR2.par. Given the good results obtained with the EUSAAR2.par protocol, evidenced by positive results obtained in 2 round robin exercises, since September 2008 all analyses are performed under the EUSAAR2.par protocol.

The abovementioned tests regarding the EUSAAR2 protocol pursued 3 aims:

- Comparison between Quartz / NIOSH / EUSAAR2 and repeatability: 1 single PM sample was analysed 3 times with each of the protocols. TC levels obtained were similar for NIOSH and EUSAAR2 and differed slightly from Quartz, and the precision was highest with NIOSH. EC/TC ratios increased from Quartz to NIOSH and EUSAAR2.
- Comparison between Quartz / EUSAAR2 for different PM mixtures: 5 different types of PM mixtures (episodes) were selected, and a total of 22 samples were analysed. The influence of the PM mixture seemed to be minor on OCEC results, given that EUSAAR2/Quartz ratios for OC did not vary significantly between PM episodes. EC/TC ratios were higher again for EUSAAR2 than for Quartz. The correlation between both methods for OC, EC and TC was high (>0.88).
- 3. Comparison between Quartz / EUSAAR2 thermograms: the following results were obtained: (a) a clearly better peak separation was observed with EUSAAR2; (b) combustion of light absorbing carbon (LAC) was minimal for both protocols (only detected for 2/11 samples); and (c) results were not optimal for either protocol regarding the split point, as in 7/11 samples for EUSAAR2 and 9/11 samples for Quartz the split point fell in the middle of a peak or close to it, inducing possible inaccuracy in the quantification of EC.

Further research is currently underway to test the performance of EUSAAR2 on urban aerosol mixtures, especially in comparison with the Quartz protocol and under the influence of different PM mixtures.

## **References**

Rodríguez S., Van Dingenen R., Putaud J.-P., Dell'Acqua A., Pey J., Querol X., Alastuey A., Chenery S., Ho K.-F., Harrison R. M., Tardivo R., Scarnato B., Gianelle V. (2007) A study on the relationship between mass concentrations, chemistry and number size distribution of urban fine aerosols in Milan, Barcelona and London. Atmos. Chem. Phys. Discuss., 7, 605-639, 2007.

Viana M., Chi X., Maenhaut W., Cafmeyer J., Querol X., Alastuey A., Mikuška P. and Vecera Z. (2006) Influence of sampling artefacts on measured PM, OC and EC levels in carbonaceous aerosols in an urban area. Aerosol Sci. Tech. 40, 107-117.

Viana M., Maenhaut W., Brink H.M.t., Chi X., Weijers E., Querol X., Alastuey A., Mikuška P. and Vecera Z. (2007) Comparative analysis of organic and elemental carbon concentrations in carbonaceous aerosols in three European cities. Atmos. Environ. 41, 5972-5983.

# 2.7 MEASUREMENTOF CARBONACEOUS AEROSOL BY THERMO-OPTICAL METHODS: The Portuguese experience

Casimiro A. Pio

University of Aveiro, Portugal

## Summary

The University of Aveiro has more than 15 years of experience in the measurement of OC and EC by thermo-optical techniques. This presentation describes the evolution of equipment and thermal heating programs and the advantages and limitations of the different alternatives. Several tests were done in order to evaluate the importance of possible interferences in the correct separation between OC and EC, taking into account the pyrolization of OC. Carbonates evolution, the interference during EC/OC measurements and the effect of pre removal with HCl vapours is discussed.

There is a delay between the volatilization of carbon in the filter and the detection of the resulting  $CO_2$  in the NDIR detector. Furthermore during the transport to the detector there is the dispersion of the emitted volatile carbon in the oven, tubing and detector. This delay / dispersion needs to be taken into account to minimize errors in the correct separation between OC and EC.

The variability in the intensity of the laser signal during thermal carbon evolution can be used to assess the optical characteristics of the pyrolysed OC and EC. Measurements show that, in urban aerosol samples, the pyrolitic OC and initial EC have similar optical absorbance characteristics. However, in rural samples, a clear variability in optical absorptivity is observed during the evolution of pyrolised OC and EC, with an initial low absorptivity coefficient value followed by a much higher coefficient during the burning of the last carbon material. This dual character of the pyrolitic OC plus EC may hinder a correct evaluation of EC in these rural samples.

The methodology used at Aveiro to measure OC and EC was tested with NIST standards and intercompared in international tests, showing EC results between those of the IMPROVE and NIOSH protocols, but more similar to the first one.

Fifteen years of aerosol measurements using the same analytical technique permitted the gathering of results that show a constant minimum OC/EC ratio value, along time and space. This is a good indication that the minimum OC/EC ratio in urban areas in winter can be safely used to determine the amount of primary OC from fossil fuel combustion, contributing to the correct source apportionment of the carbonaceous aerosol.

# 2.8 Measurements of Organic and Elemental Carbon in UK AirQuality Networks

Paul Quincey, Garry Hayman

Analytical Science Team, National Physical Laboratory

This brief summary describes the monitoring of elemental and organic carbon (EC/OC) within UK Networks. It does not cover monitoring made at the EMEP site at Auchencorth Moss (which currently monitors Black Carbon by aethalometry) or short term campaigns.

There are two relevant Networks:

The Particles Network is currently managed and operated by NPL and King's College London. Apart from EC/OC it measures particle number concentration (currently at 4 sites), size distribution (3 sites), sulphate, nitrate and chloride ( $PM_{10}$ ) daily (3 sites), nitrate ( $PM_{2.5}$ ) hourly (3 sites).

For EC/OC, from 2002 - 2007 hourly (or 3-hourly) measurements were made with 4 R & P (Thermo) 5400 analysers (4). These instruments are no longer available or supported. They had serious weaknesses in sample collection (impaction was used, and particles less than around 100 nm were not collected), in analysis (a thermal method with no charring correction was used), and in QA/QC (although the CO<sub>2</sub> monitor could be calibrated, it was not possible to do a "whole instrument" calibration).

From 2007 EC/OC has been monitored at 3 sites (Marylebone Road (London kerbside), North Kensington (London background) and Harwell (SE England rural)) by daily filter sampling using a Partisol 2025 onto Pallflex Tissuquartz 47 mm filters, followed by with lab analysis at NPL on a Sunset Laboratories instrument using the "quartz" protocol. Monthly averages for 2007 (since the start of this method in the Network) are shown below.

The Black Smoke Network has measured Black Smoke Index for many decades using daily filters analysed manually with a reflectometer. In most cases, concentrations are too low to measure accurately with this method. In 2008 the instruments at the 21 sites were changed from the old samplers to aethalometers (Magee AE-21), which will provide a more precise measure of Black Carbon with much higher time resolution.

Results and further details are available through the Defra website <u>www.airquality.co.uk</u> by following "research" and "reports database".



# 2.9 Swedish experience - Eusaar\_2 and <sup>14</sup>C

Johan Genberg

Nuclear Physics, Department of Physics, Lund University, Box 118, Se-22100, Lund, Sweden johan.genberg@nuclear.lu.se

In Sweden there are two groups working with carbonaceous aerosol. My experience is only valid for the experience at Lund University. Lund has in contrast to most other institutes not a Sunset carbon analyser but a DRI 2001A OC/EC Thermal Optical Carbon Analyzer. In general the two instruments work in the same manner but the sample size (the filter punch) is smaller using the DRI. This smaller punch may put us in the position where the sample load is too small and give higher uncertainties. The analyser has been running well since November 2008 and is generally demonstrating an instrumentation blank at approximately 0.1  $\mu$ g C.

In Lund, Eusaar 2 EC/OC protocol was tested in May 2008 and has ever since been used to analyse ambient samples from our background station Vavihill. Before, samples were analysed using the Improve method. The major differences between the methods are Eusaar 2's higher temperature of the last He-stage and the lower temperature at which oxygen is introduced. For samples collected in southern Sweden this new protocol has shown good results. Using the Improve method, the OC/EC split generally falls in the peak where oxygen is introduced at 550°C. Eusaar 2 has, with its lower temperature of 500°C (in Lund at 480°C and rising to 500°C), a wider peak and the split falls, in most cases, in the valley between the peak for 500°C and 550°C. The split of Eusaar 2 result in lowering the uncertainties of OC/EC separation. The temperature in the last OC stage in Eusaar 2 is set at 650°C which is 100°C higher than the Improve protocol. This temperature is enough to start combustion of charred substances (true or false EC). The length of this temperature stage has so far not been as long as required to restore the laser baseline for the transmission signal to its starting value. A temperature of 650°C is however not high enough to combust soot in pure helium gas. Collected pure soot, generated at Lund University, show practically no increase in laser transmission during the 650°C helium phase.

At Lund the split between OC and EC is of primary interest for climate research. The information is used, together with radiocarbon (<sup>14</sup>C) measurements, to quantify the sources of the carbonaceous aerosol. This is possible since the naturally occurring carbon isotope <sup>14</sup>C is radioactive and has a half-life of 5730 years. Fossil fuel is therefore <sup>14</sup>C-free while biomass has <sup>14</sup>C concentration as the atmosphere of today. EC, originating from combustion, might by radiocarbon measurement be separated into fossil fuel and biomass burning. Known, or estimated, value of EC/OC from wood burning may be used to complete the source apportionment of OC into fossil fuel, biomass burning and biogenic sources.

To separate OC and EC prior to radiocarbon measurement two techniques are tested in Lund. The first and most promising is a method based upon the work of Sönke Szidat the University of Bern, Switzerland (Szidat et al. 2004, Radiocarbon, 46, 475-484). The water soluble OC is removed by water treatment and the filter is heated in 375°C in air for the time needed to remove all OC. Szidat found that 4 hours was needed to get a stable <sup>14</sup>C concentration in the remaining carbon. The carbon left on the filter is considered pure EC and may be analysed. The radiocarbon content of the OC fraction is in Lund determined by subtraction after measured <sup>14</sup>C in the total sample. This method is currently being verified using the Eusaar\_2 protocol. Since OC/EC separation is user defined it is important that the separation of OC and EC prior radiocarbon measurement is comparable.

In the second considered method the gas flow from the carbon analyser is diverted and trapped it in a cold trap using liquid nitrogen. This would make it possible to use different gas mixtures and monitor the filter's optical properties during the analysis. Because of the small

punch size of the DRI, several punches might be required before sufficient carbon has been collected to be able to perform the <sup>14</sup>C measurement.

It is necessary to extract the carbon from the aerosol samples and convert it into solid carbon prior to <sup>14</sup>C AMS measurement (Accelerator Mass Spectrometer) at Lund University. Carbon analysed with the first method is combusted to carbon dioxide. In both methods the carbon dioxide is collected and converted into solid graphite carbon. The carbon dioxide is mixed with hydrogen in a small volume with iron powder and converted into graphite by heat. The process is constantly monitored by measuring the pressure. In Lund the graphitisation system is capable of handling samples as small as 25  $\mu$ g C, which makes analyses of aerosol samples possible. The use of radiocarbon content in aerosol fractions is not the only analysis needed but together with other parameters it is a valuable tool to create a total source apportionment of aerosol particles.

# 2.10 Résumé

The main outcomes from the presentations and discussions during the precious two days were discussed and summarised by all participants. The statements given below are meant to be recommendations for the standardisation of OC and EC measurements in Europe.

## Rationale

The main focus of the new standard should go along with the intention of the new Air Quality Directive. Information related to health effects and mass closure for PM should take priority over the aim to derive information related to climate change (optical properties). Nevertheless, whenever possible combination of the different aims should be pursued.

## Types of sites

It is stressed that the method should also be applicable to urban and roadside sites as well as rural sites, even though the Directive only specifies rural background sites. This is to ensure comparability in all relevant areas of use of the data such as of chemical composition, source identification and apportionment, exposure assessment.

## Time resolution

The minimum time resolution of the method should allow daily values to be in accordance with those for PM. This does specifically not exclude shorter time resolution methods. Contrary, shorter time resolutions should be favoured if the data will be obtained with the same quality.

## Sampling

There needs to be an explicit link to e.g. EN 14907 sampling for  $PM_{2.5}$  without addressing sampling artefacts. Filter types will need to be more restricted than EN 14907. The method should not be linked to a specific size fraction.

The use of blank filters, filter handling, and use of blank filter results will need to be clearly addressed, e.g. more stringent than in EN 14907.

### Parameter

The high data quality in determining TC (significant lower uncertainty than for EC and OC) should be considered when setting up a standard.

### Analysis

EC and OC data should allow / support mass closure of PM along with other PM constituent determined e.g. within the AQD framework.

### Links to other standards and network protocols

The European standard should not be developed in isolation from relevant work in other communities especially EMEP, EUSAAR and the US.

# **Annex: The Presentations**

# A.1 The European Ambient Air policy Implementation of AQ Directive











# A.2 EC/OC Workshop: Background and Introduction to Measurement Techniques



#### What is the purpose of this workshop?

wien wien

Tasks:

- derive an overview on available, practicable measurement techniques and their comparability, repetitiveness!
- What is been applied in Europe?
- Recommendations for standardisation!

Question related to standardisation:

- on-line or off-line method?
- manual or automatic method?
- combined EC and OC method?
- optically or mass based method?
- comparability?
- repeatability?
- calibration / validation?



| Legislative Background  | Annette Borowiak  | DG ENV, EC                         | 12:00 | 12:15 |
|---|-------------------|------------------------------------|-------|-------|
| What is EC/BC/OC and what are the<br>sources  | Thomas Kuhlbusch  | IUTA, Germany                      | 12:15 | 13:00 |
|   | Louise Emplies    |                                    | 13:00 | 13:30 |
| EC/OC Comparison Aquilia  | Lorenza Emblico   | JKC-IE3                            |       |       |
| BREAK   |                   |                                    | 13:30 | 14:30 |
| The Atmospheric Soot Network  | Olga Popoviecheva | Moscow State<br>University, Russia | 14:30 | 14:45 |
| Principles of thermal methods for the<br>detection and differentiation of EC and<br>OC, intercomparison results | Willy Maenhaut    | Gent University,<br>Belgium        | 14:45 | 15:15 |
| Artefacts during sampling and on-site<br>thermal analysis of carbonaceous<br>matter                             | Harry ten Brink   | ECN, The<br>Netherlands            | 15:15 | 15:45 |
| Analysis methods used in EUSAAR:<br>Practicability and results  | J. P. Putaud      | JRC-IES, EC                        | 15:45 | 16:15 |
| BREAK   |                   |                                    | 16:15 | 16:30 |
| Comparability of EMEP methods   | Karl Espen Yttri  | NILU, Norway                       | 16:30 | 17:00 |
|   |                   |                                    | _     |       |

| Draft agenda Day      | 2                |                                |       |       |
|-----------------------|------------------|--------------------------------|-------|-------|
| Current VDI standards | Dieter Gladtke   | LANUV,<br>Germany              | 9:00  | 9:15  |
| Hungarian experience  | Andras Gelenscer | AoS, Hungary                   | 9:15  | 9:30  |
| Spanish Experience    | Mar Viana        | CSIC, Spain                    | 9:30  | 9:45  |
| Portugese experience  | Casimiro Pio     | University Aveiro,<br>Portugal | 9:45  | 10:00 |
| French experience     | Jean Sciare      | LSCE, France                   | 10:00 | 10:15 |
| UK experience         | Paul Quincey     | NPL, UK                        | 10:15 | 10:30 |
| Swedish experience    | Johan Genberg    | Lund University,<br>Sweden     | 10:30 | 10:45 |
| BREAK                 |                  |                                | 10:45 | 11:15 |
| Discussion            |                  |                                | 11:15 | 12:30 |
| Conclusions           |                  |                                | 12:30 | 13:00 |

#### Content

What is the purpose of the workshop? How is it structured? (Program) How will it proceed?

#### What is EC and OC? Where does it come from?

Why do we want to measure EC and OC? How can it be measured? What are the main principles? What are the measurement requirements?







In his seminal book "Black Carbon in the Environment" Goldberg points out:

There is no clear definition of black carbon. It often is defined by scientists on the basis of their techniques of isolation and measurement. Despite the highly variable nature of black carbon we may describe it as a combustion derived carbon fraction of black color.

 $\rightarrow$  OC = TC - EC/BC?






















#### Mechanisms of interaction

Wien Wien

•When a beam of light impinges on a particle, electric charges in the particle are excited into oscillatory motion.

•The excited electric charges reradiate energy in all directions (*scattering*) and may convert a part of the incident radiation into thermal energy (*absorption*).

•Conservation of energy requires that the light removed from the incident beam (extinction) by the particle is accounted for by scattering in all directions and absorption, i.e.

$$\bullet \sigma_{ext} = \sigma_{sp} + \sigma_{a}$$

•Coefficients for light extinction by particles ( $\sigma_{ep}$ ), scattering ( $\sigma_{sp}$ ) and absorption ( $\sigma_{ap}$ ) are calculated for spherical particles by Mie theory.

•Efficiencies Q for extinction, scattering and absorption are defined as the ratio of the cross-section with respect to particle-radiation interaction and the geometrical particle cross-section

 $\bullet A_p = \pi D^2 / 4$ 





# TABLE 22.2 Refractive Indices of Atmospheric Substances at $\lambda = 589$ nm (Unless Otherwise Indicated)

|   |                    | m = n - ik |                              |
|---|--------------------|------------|------------------------------|
| Substance                                       | n                  | k          |                              |
| Water   | 1.333              | 0 (see 7   | Table 22.1)                  |
| Water (icc)                                     | 1.309              |            |                              |
| NaCl  | 1.544              | 0          |                              |
| H <sub>2</sub> SO <sub>4</sub>                  | 1.426"             | 0          |                              |
| NH <sub>4</sub> HSO <sub>4</sub>                | $1.473^{b}$        | 0          |                              |
| (NH <sub>4</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> SO <sub>4</sub> | 1.521 <sup>b</sup> | 0          |                              |
| SiO <sub>2</sub>                                | 1.55               | 0          | $(\lambda = 550  \text{nm})$ |
| Carbon  | 1.96               | 0.66       | $(\lambda = 550  \text{nm})$ |
| Mineral dust <sup>c</sup>                       | 1.56               | -0.006     | $(\lambda = 550 \text{ nm})$ |

'Tegen et al. (1996).





filter surface area A , sampled volume V, mass-specific absorption coefficient  $B_{ATN} \, [m^2 \, g^{-1}]$ , filter mass loading  $S_{BC} \, [\mu g/cm^2]$ 





| rosol Absorption Methods in Reno<br>rosol Optics Study 2002 (RAOS) |                            |                 | Wien Universität                      |  |
|--|----------------------------|-----------------|---------------------------------------|--|
| Photoa   | acoustic Spectroscopy      | ,               | in situ                               |  |
| #1   | 532 nm, 1047 nm            |                 |                                       |  |
| Particle   | e/Soot Absorption Pho      | otometer PSAP   | filter transmission;                  |  |
| #1   | 565 nm                     | (regular)       | f (Tr; $\sigma_{en}$ ) applied        |  |
| #2   | 471, 543, 659 nm           | (modified 3-λ)  | ι sμγ i                               |  |
| Multi-V  | Vavelength Aethalome       | ter             | filter transmission;                  |  |
| #1   | 370, 470, 521, 590, 60     | 60, 880, 950 nm | no corrections for                    |  |
| #2   | 370, 430, 470, 521, 5      | 65, 700, 950 nm | <i>Tr</i> and b <sub>sp</sub> applied |  |
| Multi-A  | angle Absorption Phot      | ometer MAAP     | filter-based;                         |  |
| #1   | 630 nm                     |                 | $f(Tr; \sigma_{sp}) = 1 (?)$          |  |
| Refere   | nce method                 |                 | in situ                               |  |
| Absorp   | otion = Extinction - Sca   | attering        |                                       |  |
| (Extinc  | tion Cell - Integrating Ne | ephelometer)    |                                       |  |

























#### Definition

# Wien Wien

- Black carbon (BC) → optical methods measured parameter: absorption coefficient s<sub>a</sub>; conversion to BC mass
- Elemental carbon (EC) → thermal methods measured parameter: CO<sub>2</sub> or CH<sub>4</sub> separation of EC and organic carbon (OC)
- Graphitic carbon
- Thermally refractory carbon
- "Brown carbon"





· Light transmission of clean and loaded filter

() uiversität

- Absorption coefficient s<sub>a</sub>(l)
- Conversion to BC concentration via calibration constant or specific attenuation
- Aethalometer, Light transmission method: 19 m²/g
- PSAP 10 m<sup>2</sup>/g























#### Content

Wien with the state

What is the purpose of the workshop? How is it structured? (Program) How will it proceed?

What is EC and OC? Where does it come from? Why do we want to measure EC and OC? How can it be measured? Brown stuff? What are the measurement requirements?

#### Measurement requirements



#### Tasks:

- derive an overview on available, practicable measurement techniques and their comparability, repetitiveness!
- What is been applied in Europe?
- Recommendations for standardisation!

#### Question related to standardisation:

- on-line or off-line method?
- manual or automatic method?
- combined EC and OC method?
- optically or mass based method?
- comparability?
- repeatability?
- calibration / validation?

## A.3 Atmospheric Soot Network development of reference materials

# Atmospheric Soot Network

# development of reference materials



#### The Need for Atmospheric Soot Network – A Historical Perspective

in a multidisciplinary (field, lab, modeling) approach the scientist is faced with significant problems:

- Limit of in-situ observations of soot-initiated processes at microscopic level
- Expensive and time-consuming emission and collection experiments
- Laboratory studies may help but..

no single laboratory has all measurement techniques available for full soot characterization

no common laboratory soot available for atmospheric studies

Inter-laboratory comparisons are difficult because a variety of methodic and methodic - dependent results

#### Quality of Soot Measurements is low:

\*a lack of commonly accepted reference BC material for calibration instruments

many instruments in different laboratories are calibrated by different BC materials giving us...different results..

Our current ability to predict environmental and health effects of soot emissions is strongly limited

#### There is no

quantitative estimations of the soot exhaust effect from industry /commercial sources, transport, and domestic heating to compare it with natural sources from biomass burning and forest plumes.



INTROP-sponsored ASEFI Meeting (<u>Atmospheric Soot: Environmental Fate and Impact</u>) was convened in Arcachon/France on Oct 18-20 2006 ASN web site : http://www.asn.u-bordeaux.fr/

#### Mission of ASN :

promoting links between industry and researchers,
 facilitating the collaboration of research groups for soot - related project,

 developing a common approach for characterization of soot exhaust and common laboratory soot,

- coordinating the development of soot reference materials,

- organizing inter-laboratory studies of soot reference materials to compare measurement techniques,

-maintaining a database of soot- related studies linked to environmental impact.

# ASN: characteristics of reference calibration materials

- precisely- known properties, especially the content and nature of organic compounds
- > reproducibility
- > stability
- > certification

fossil fuel burning

comparison Test campaigns

**Combustion particles in atmosphere:** 

@RM Round Robin Test

There are currently no controlled methods for producing soot of precisely-known properties, i.e. size, surface area, composition, organic coverage.

The development of atmospheric representative and accessible BC materials with reproducible "programmable properties" will ensure long-term intra and inter-laboratory data quality leading to a great progress of the entire environmental community in the BC measurement and monitoring.





# Image: Second second

typical features

OC content: alkanes, alkenes, PAHs, organic aromatic and aliphatic acids, ketons, esters, alkilbenzenes, and derivaties



47





V, cm³





| №<br>1<br>2<br>3<br>4<br>5 | EC basis<br>GTS-6<br>GTS-6<br>GTS-6<br>GTS-6 | Modificator:<br>Pyrene<br>$C_{16}H_{10}$<br>Octacosane<br>$C_{28}H_{58}$              | OM<br>0,32%<br>0,16%<br>0,24%<br>0,12% |
|----------------------------|--|---|--|
| 1<br>2<br>3<br>4<br>5      | GTS-6<br>GTS-6<br>GTS-6<br>GTS-6             | Pyrene $C_{16}H_{10}$ Octacosane $C_{28}H_{58}$                                       | 0,32%<br>0,16%<br>0,24%<br>0,12%       |
| 2<br>3<br>4<br>5           | GTS-6<br>GTS-6<br>GTS-6                      | $\begin{array}{c} C_{16}H_{10}\\\\ \textbf{Octacosane}\\\\ C_{28}H_{58} \end{array}$  | 0,16%<br>0,24%<br>0,12%                |
| 3<br>4<br>5                | GTS-6<br>GTS-6                               | Octacosane<br>C <sub>28</sub> H <sub>58</sub>   | 0,24%                                  |
| 4<br>5                     | GTS-6  |   | 0,12%                                  |
| 5                          | GTS- 80                                      |   | ,                                      |
|                            | 010-00                                       | Pyrene<br>C <sub>16</sub> H <sub>10</sub>   | 1%                                     |
| 6                          | GTS- 80                                      |   | 5%                                     |
| 7                          | GTS- 80                                      | 1,2,4-Benzenetricarboxylic acid   | 1%                                     |
| 8                          | GTS - 80                                     | $(Irimellitic acid) C_9 H_6 O_6$  | 4,88%                                  |
| 9                          | GTS -80                                      | PEG 600 OH [-C <sub>2</sub> H <sub>4</sub> O-] <i>n</i> H<br>Carbowax 600 (M 570-630) | 1%                                     |
| 10                         | GTS - 80                                     | 2,6 Naphtalene-dicarboxylic acid $$C_{12}H_8O_4$$                                     | 9.09%                                  |









#### Atmospheric Soot Network

Summary and Recommendations Since BC measurement method is planing to be standartizided by CEN

we have emphasized that there is a lack of standandardized reference materials for the calibration of this measurement technique.

A major contribution of Atmospheric Soot Network can be focusing the developing reference materials that will be testing and become certified standards for use in monitoring and scientific communities.



A.4 Principles of thermal methods for the detection and differentiation of EC and OC, intercomparison results

# Principles of thermal methods for the detection and differentiation of EC and OC, intercomparison results

#### Willy Maenhaut

Ghent University (UGent), Department of Analytical Chemistry, Institute for Nuclear Sciences, Proeftuinstraat 86, BE-9000 Gent

EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra

#### EC/OC?

IIIII

|   |   | Thermochemical<br>Classification          | Molecular<br>Structures  | Optical<br>Classification             |                  |
|---|---|---|--|---------------------------------------|------------------|
| L |   | Elemental<br>Carbon (EC)                  | Graphene Layers<br>(graphitic or turbostratic)                       | Black<br>Carbon (BC)                  | $\sum_{i=1}^{n}$ |
|   | efractivenes                                  | Refractory<br>Organic Carbon              | Polycyclic Aromatics,<br>Humic-Like Substances,<br>Biopolymers, etc. | Colored<br>Organic Carbon             | bsorption        |
|   | Chem. Re                                      | (Nonrefractory)<br>Organic Carbon<br>(OC) | Low-Molecular-Mass<br>Hydrocarbons and<br>Derivatives                | (Colorless)<br>Organic Carbon<br>(OC) | Optical Al       |
|   | taken from Pöschl, Anal. Bioanal. Chem., 2003 |   |  |                                       |                  |
|   | UNYE  | SSTEET<br>NI                              | EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra   |                                       | 3                |

#### Outline

OC/EC?

NIVESTER

NYESTE

- 4 Aerosol Carbon round robin of Puxbaum
- Thermal analysis of atmospheric particulate matter (PM) for OC and EC
  - > simple thermal methods
  - two-step thermal methods
  - thermal-optical methods
- Dependence on operational parameters: Intercomparison of 4 temperature protocols in TOT for 5 sample sets
- Intercomparison of thermal methods for samples from a 2006 winter campaign in Vienna

EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra

2

4

#### Aerosol Carbon round robin [Schmid et al., Atmos. Environ., 2001]

- done on quartz fibre filter samples, which had been collected in Berlin
- **4** 17 participants, including UGent with TOT
  - UGent provided both optically corrected EC and OC data (Lab 11) and data without optical correction (Lab 11b)

EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra



#### Outline





#### Thermal analysis of PM for OC and EC

- Total carbon (TC) = OC + EC + (CC)
- Analysis in the lab of collected aerosol samples
   > samples normally collected on quartz fibre filters

#### Thermal methods

NIVERSITE

- 1. Simple thermal methods
  - Evolved Gas Analysis (EGA) [Puxbaum, Novakov]
- 2. Two-step thermal methods
  - Cachier method [Tellus B, 1989]
  - VDI-2 method
- 3. Thermal-optical methods
  - thermal-optical transmission (TOT) technique with instrument of Sunset Lab
  - thermal-optical reflectance (TOR) technique with instrument of Desert Research Institute (DRI)

8

EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra

#### **Evolved Gas Analysis (EGA)**

#### heating in oxygen

- program with linear temperature ramp
  - ➢ from room temperature to 800°C
  - temperature ramp of 20°C min<sup>-1</sup>
- carbonaceous vapours converted into CO<sub>2</sub> by MnO<sub>2</sub> catalyst (at 700°C)
  - > CO<sub>2</sub> measured with NDIR detector
  - $\succ$  alternative detection methods for CO<sub>2</sub>
    - coulometry
    - conversion into  $CH_4$  and measurement of the latter with a flame ionisation detector (FID)
- **thermogram obtained** 
  - $\succ$  CO<sub>2</sub> peaks at low temperature considered as OC
  - $\succ$  CO<sub>2</sub> peak at high temperature considered as EC
- quantification done by determining the area under the peaks
   calibration with samples of known amount of carbon
  - (e.g., sucrose)

THIL

EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra

9



#### **Evolved Gas Analysis (EGA)**

#### Limitation of the pure thermal methods

- some of the organic matter may be converted into pyrolitic EC (PEC) by pyrolysis or charring and like the "real" EC only be converted into vapour at higher temperature and then erroneously be counted as EC
  - > this limitation applies also to the two-step thermal methods
  - the artifact formation of PEC is smaller in an oxidising atmosphere (O<sub>2</sub>) than in an inert gas (He, N<sub>2</sub>, Ar)
- the presence of inorganic cations, such as K<sup>+</sup> or Na<sup>+</sup> (which are important components in biomass burning samples), has a serious influence on the thermal evolution of the carbonaceous vapours
  - > peaks come faster
  - distinction of EC from OC is often not easy
  - aqueous extraction of the sample often done to improve the determination of EC

NIVERSITE

EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra

10

Thermograms for cascade impactor stage from SMOCC 40 Stage 4 35 Stage 4x 30 CO2, ppm 5 0 5 untreated sample water extracted sample 10 5 0 300 400 Temperature (°C) 0 100 200 500 600 700 NYEKSI EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra 12

#### Two-step thermal methods: Cachier

- Samples first subjected to a pretreatment (in HCl vapour) to remove the inorganic carbonates
- Measurement of EC [Cachier et al., Tellus B, 1989]
  - one part of the sample then subjected to a thermal pretreatment step (precombustion at 340°C for 2 h) in order to remove the organic component
  - the remaining EC is determined by combustion of the sample at 1100°C and coulometric titration of the evolved CO<sub>2</sub> in a carbon analyzer (Ströhlein Coulomat 702C)
- **4** Measurement of OC
  - for another part of the sample, the combustion/titration performed without any thermal pretreatment, so that the content of TC is obtained
  - ➤ the difference (TC BC) then yields OC
- UNIVERSITET

IIIII

EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra

13

15

#### Thermal-optical transmission (TOT) technique

- e.g. TOT technique with instrument of Sunset Lab
  - > for analysis of aerosol samples on quartz fibre filter
- in Dept. Anal. Chem., UGent: 2 Sunset Lab TOT instruments

#### 1st phase [in pure He]

- filter punch, in quartz oven, in 4 steps heated to e.g. 900°C
- desorbed carbonaceous vapours catalytically oxidised into CO<sub>2</sub> (by MnO<sub>2</sub> held at 870°C)
- $\blacksquare$  CO<sub>2</sub> reduced to CH<sub>4</sub> (in Ni-firebrick methanator, at 500°C)
- **CH**<sub>4</sub> measured with flame ionisation detector (FID)
- laser light (670 nm) continuously passed through filter punch
  - light transmission continuously measured

During 1st phase pyrolysis (charring) of part of the OC occurs with formation of PEC, so that the light transmission decreases

EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra

#### Two-step thermal methods: VDI-2

- As an example: Approach currently used at IfT, Leipzig [Neusüß et al., JGR, 2002; Plewka et al., J. Atmos. Chem., 2004]
- Two-step thermographic method using a commercial carbon analyzer C-mat 5500 (Ströhlein, Germany); consists of
  - free programmable combustion furnace (IR 05)
  - > followed by a resistance oven (D03 GTE) holding the CuO catalyst (to convert carbon quantitatively to CO<sub>2</sub>) at 850°C
  - and a NDIR detector measuring the IR absorption of the CO<sub>2</sub> formed
- First step: heating of the sample at 590°C (or 650°C) in nitrogen carrier gas for OC volatilisation
- Second step: EC combusted at 650°C in an oxygen atmosphere
- In between the two steps, the IR furnace cooled down to 50°C to avoid EC losses during flushing with oxygen

EC/O

NYESTE

NYESTE

EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra

2nd phase [in 98%He/2%O<sub>2</sub> mixture]

- after slight cooling, filter punch in four (or more) steps further heated to e.g. 900°C
- otherwise same as for 1st phase
- when the light transmission through the filter punch equals that seen at the beginning of the 1st phase, the OC/EC split is set
  - CO<sub>2</sub> measured in the 1st phase and during the 2nd phase prior to the split considered as OC (includes the PEC)
  - > CO<sub>2</sub> measured after the split considered as the "real" EC

Total  $CO_2$  measured during 2nd phase (sum of PEC + "real" EC) corresponds to the EC, which is measured without optical correction

EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra

14

16



#### Scheme of Sunset Lab TOT instrument (V = valve)

#### Outline

#### OC/EC?

- Aerosol Carbon round robin of Puxbaum
- Thermal analysis of atmospheric particulate matter (PM) for OC and EC
  - > simple thermal methods
  - > two-step thermal methods
  - thermal-optical methods
- Dependence on operational parameters: Intercomparison of 4 temperature protocols in TOT for 5 sample sets
- Intercomparison of thermal methods for samples from a 2006 winter campaign in Vienna

| THIT                | EC/OC Workshop 2009 Jspra |
|---------------------|---------------------------|
| UNIVERSITET<br>GENT |                           |

# Thermogram for quartz fibre filter sample from Ghent, obtained with UGent standard temperature program (ST)



#### **Dependence on operational parameters**

- For a single method, such as TOT, there is a strong dependence of the EC/TC ratio on the operational parameters and especially on the temperature program during the 1st phase of the analysis
- At UGent samples from 5 different locations analysed with 4 different temperature programs, with maximum temperature in 1st phase
  - ➢ UGent ST : 900 °C

UNIVESTER

19

| NIOSH 2 (N2) | 2): 870 °C |
|--------------|------------|
|--------------|------------|

> A3, proxy for temperature program used by DRI : 550 °C

EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra

20

➢ EUSAAR 2 (E2): 650 °C









#### Table

NYESTER

Ranges for TC and for EC/TC, as obtained with the program ST and UGent instrument B, for 5 series of aerosol filter samples

| Sample series | no. of<br>samples | Range<br>TC (µg/cm²) | Range<br>EC/TC |
|---------------|-------------------|----------------------|----------------|
| Ghent         | 26                | 15 – 110             | 0.084 - 0.35   |
| Beijing       | 5                 | 71 – 240             | 0.15 - 0.24    |
| Austria       | 16                | 18 - 40              | 0.076 - 0.13   |
| K-puszta      | 5                 | 16 - 25              | 0.038 - 0.056  |
| Amazonia      | 5                 | 57 – 98              | 0.021 - 0.031  |

EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra

25

0.45 Beijing Ghent 0.40 Austria – Linear (Beijing) 0.35 -Linear (Ghent) 0.30 utio Linear (Austria) Wean EC/TC R 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.10 0.05 0.00 500 550 600 650 700 750 800 850 900 950 Maximum temperature during phase 1 (°C) NVESTER EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra 27





#### **Dependence on operational parameters**

- **G** For the same temperature program:
  - different EC/TC ratio for optical correction with TOT and with of TOR

| GENT      |                            |    |
|-----------|----------------------------|----|
| UNIVESTET | EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra | 29 |
|           |                            |    |
|           |                            |    |
|           |                            |    |
|           |                            |    |
|           |                            |    |
|           |                            |    |
|           |                            |    |
|           |                            |    |
|           |                            |    |
|           |                            |    |
| 0110      |                            |    |

#### EC/BC intercomparison for aerosol samples collected in 2006 winter in Vienna [Reisinger et al., Environ. Sci. Technol., 2008]

samples of 24 hours collected on rooftop of Univ. of Vienna

NVESTET

- samples analysed by 3 optical methods and 4 thermal methods > optical (BC): LTM, MAAP, IS
  - ▶ thermal (EC): TOM-TU, Cachier, TOT-NIOSH, TOT-A3

EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra

31

#### Outline

OC/EC?

UNIVERSITE

- Aerosol Carbon round robin of Puxbaum
- Thermal analysis of atmospheric particulate matter (PM) for OC and EC
  - simple thermal methods
  - two-step thermal methods
  - thermal-optical methods
- Dependence on operational parameters: Intercomparison of 4 temperature protocols in TOT for 5 sample sets
- Intercomparison of thermal methods for samples from a 2006 winter campaign in Vienna

EC/OC

EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra

30

Vienna Winter 2006 Campaign: Thermal methods and IS 9 TOM-TU 8 ---- Cachier EC (µg/m³) - TOT (NIOSH) ---- IS BC uncorrected, TOT filters 22-Feb 24-Feb 26-Feb 06-Feb 08-Feb 10-Feb 14-Feb 16-Feb 18-Feb 20-Feb 28-Feb 02-Mar 04-Mar 06-Mar 14-Mar 12-Feb 10-Mar 12-Mar 08-Mar Sampling Date NYESTE EC/OC Workshop 2009, Ispra 32





# A.5 Artifacts during sampling









# <section-header><section-header><section-header><text><text><text><text><text><text>

#### **₩ECN**

#### COMPARABILITY OF METHODS FOR MEASURING THE CARBON CONTENT IN AEROSOL IN EUROPE

www.ecn.nl

HARRY TEN BRINK<sup>1</sup>, ARJA EVEN<sup>1</sup> K. MUELLER<sup>2</sup>, TH. GNAUK<sup>2</sup>, GER. SPINDLER<sup>2</sup> X.CHI<sup>3</sup>, W. MAENHAUT<sup>3</sup> R. HITZENBERGER<sup>4</sup>, A. BERNER<sup>4</sup> H. BAUER<sup>5</sup>, H. PUXBAUM<sup>5</sup> J. TURSTIC<sup>6</sup> J-P. PUTAUD<sup>7</sup>

1Energy Research Centre of the Netherlands (ECN), Petten, The Netherlands 2Institut fuer Troposphareniforschule, eV, (IIT), Leipzig, Germany 3Gent University (UGhent), Institute for Nuclear Sciences, Gent, Beiglum 4Institut fuer Experimentalphysik (IEP), Wien, Austria 5Institute for Analytical Chemistry, Wenna University of Technology (TUV), Austria 6National Institute of Chemistry (NIC), Ljubijana, Slovenia

7 7-7-2009 Energy research Centre of the Netherlands

 Implementation Should focus on OC

 Investigation Should focus on OC

 However, amount of QC depends on analysis method

 (Schmid / Puxbaum et al., 2001 round-robin)

 Had a look at OC values in that study:

 factor of 2 difference between institutes

 Thus: there is a combined uncertainty in sampling and analysis of OC

 Better: evaluation of data of Total Carbon



Energy research Centre of the Netherlands

7-7-2009

www.ecn.ni

#### Scientific approach / experience in Europe

Filters in series Filter-pack *Sillanpää* 

Denuder preceeding the filter-pack *Maenhaut / Viana* 

Denuder filter/coated-filter PTFE-filter followed by denuder and coated-filter *Putaud* 

Compare with US •Networks with hundreds of stations •scientific programs for 2 decades:

Turpin, Eatough, Chow, Kirchstetter/Novakov

9 7-7-2009

Energy research Centre of the Netherlands

www.ecn.ni



| <b>₩ECN</b>  |  |  |  |  |
|--|--|--|--|--|
| Amount of air through filter and Carbon in 2d filter<br>expressed as concentration |  |  |  |  |
| face velocity cm s <sup>-1</sup>   | artifact   |  |  |  |
| 20   | 4.6 μg C m <sup>-3</sup>   |  |  |  |
| 40   | 2.9 µg C m <sup>-3</sup>   |  |  |  |
| 80<br>Turn   | 1.8 μg C m <sup>-3</sup>   |  |  |  |
| Turpin <i>et al.</i> (1994) Atm.<br>10 7-7-2003 <u>30</u> 71 Energy research C     | , Env. 28, No 19, 3061 -<br>Centre of the Netherlands www.ecn.nl |  |  |  |

| H  | low large is Positive Artifa   | ict?                                 |
|----|--------------------------------|--------------------------------------|
|    | Field Experiment               | Back Quartz TC + Front Quartz TC (%) |
|    | CALSPAN (Smog chamber)         | 90 ± 34 (n = 34)                     |
|    | • CLAMS (UW CV-580)            | 77 ± 09 (n = 19)                     |
|    | • TARFOX (UW CV-580)           | 66 ± 07 (n = 28)                     |
|    | • SAFARI (UW CV-580)           | 54 ± 19 (n = 54)                     |
|    | • PRIDE (Tropical Trade Winds  | 45 ± 16 (n = 04)                     |
|    | ACE-2 (RV Vodyanitskiy)        | 30 ± 10 (n = 12)                     |
|    | • Berkeley, CA (LBNL)          | 30 ± 06 (n = 12)                     |
|    | • Fresno, CA (EPA Supersite, C | t 2000) 15 ± 06 (n = 20)             |
|    |                                |                                      |
| 12 | 7-7-2009 Energy research C     | entre of the Netherlands www.ecn.nl  |



# 💓 E C N

Example of field-blanks: filters in standard filter-carousel Rotterdam area, 2 sites

| 448-A-BL.L 20/09 | 1.5 | DCMR-A-BL.L 20/09 | 5.4 |
|------------------|-----|-------------------|-----|
| 448-A-BL.R 20/09 | 1.3 | DCMR-A-BL.R 20/09 | 4.0 |
| 448-B-BL.L 20/09 | 1.8 | DCMR-B-BL.L 20/09 | 1.8 |
| 448-B-BL.R 20/09 | 1.9 | DCMR-B-BL.R 20/09 | 1.3 |
|                  |     |                   |     |

#### "Field blanks" in ug/m3

| 15 | 7-7-2009 | Energy research Centre of the Netherlands | www.ecn.nl |
|----|----------|---|------------|
|    |          |   |            |

## **₩ECN**





19 7-7-2009

Lot-blanks in more common unit

|          | TC in µg/cm <sup>2</sup> |  |  |
|----------|--------------------------|--|--|
| Filter 1 | 6.5                      |  |  |
| Filter 2 | 1.1                      |  |  |
| Filter 3 | 6.1                      |  |  |
| Filter 4 | 2.2                      |  |  |
| Filter 5 | 6.7                      |  |  |
| Filter 6 | 2.1                      |  |  |

In red: typical values for filters from the top of a pile as received from manufacturer, contaminated by lid of the cassette!!

Energy research Centre of the Netherlands

www.ecn.ni

**₩ECN** 

A F O N

|                                  | 2 batches              |
|----------------------------------|------------------------|
|                                  |                        |
|                                  |                        |
|                                  | Per filter             |
|                                  | μg                     |
|                                  |                        |
| Filter 1                         | 112.6                  |
| Filter 1<br>Filter 2             | <u>112.6</u><br>19.4   |
| Filter 1<br>Filter 2<br>Filter 3 | 112.6<br>19.4<br>105.8 |

116.2

36.2

18 7-7-2009 Energy research Centre of the Netherlands

Filter 5

Filter 6

www.ecn.ni

| Carbon-blanks Kuhlbusch 1995     |                      |                      |                              |                              |                             |                              |  |
|----------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|------------------------------|------------------------------|-----------------------------|------------------------------|--|
| Filter                           | Treatment<br>(°C, h) | Number of replicates | TC<br>(μg/cm <sup>-2</sup> ) | TH<br>(μg/cm <sup>-2</sup> ) | $BC_i$<br>$(\mu g/cm^{-2})$ | BH<br>(μg/cm <sup>-2</sup> ) |  |
| From oven                        |                      |                      |                              |                              |                             |                              |  |
| <b>Borosilicate</b> <sup>a</sup> | 600/2                | 2                    | $1.34 \pm 0.18$              | $6.44 \pm 0.18$              | $0.26 \pm 0.01$             | $1.33 \pm 0.06$              |  |
| Quartz fiberb.c                  | n.t.                 | 6                    | $2.61 \pm 1.01$              | ADL                          | $0.39 \pm 0.03$             | ADL                          |  |
| Ouartz fiberb.c                  | n.t.                 | 7                    | $6.09 \pm 0.58$              | ADL                          | $0.92 \pm 0.14$             | ADL                          |  |
| Quartz fibere                    | 600/6                | 4                    | $1.33 \pm 0.10$              | ADL                          | $0.29 \pm 0.05$             | $6.44 \pm 0.42$              |  |
| Quartz fibere                    | 800/1                | 4                    | $1.63 \pm 0.62$              | $1.09 \pm 0.88$              | $0.58 \pm 0.26$             | $1.01 \pm 0.05$              |  |
| Quartz fiber <sup>e</sup>        | 800/4                | 4                    | $0.47 \pm 0.07$              | $0.21 \pm 0.14$              | $0.46 \pm 0.69$             | $0.26 \pm 0.52$              |  |
| Quartz fiber                     | 850/4                | 8                    | $0.54 \pm 0.31$              | $0.81 \pm 0.76$              | $0.43 \pm 0.33$             | $0.05 \pm 0.07$              |  |
| From roof                        |                      |                      |                              |                              |                             |                              |  |
| Quartz fiber                     | 600/6                | 3                    | $1.35 \pm 0.52$              | > 11.00                      | $1.12 \pm 1.10$             | $4.11 \pm 0.28$              |  |
| Quartz fiber <sup>e</sup>        | 850/4                | 7                    | $1.01 \pm 0.27$              | $0.55 \pm 0.23$              | $0.14 \pm 0.03$             | BDL                          |  |
| Sampled filters                  |                      |                      |                              |                              |                             |                              |  |
| Ouartz fibere                    | Mixed <sup>d</sup>   | ~ 50                 | $39 \pm 22$                  | $7.8 \pm 4.1$                | $13.5 \pm 6.9$              | $0.80 \pm 1.10$              |  |



# #ECN



- 1. Face velocity
- 2. Filter-pack
- 3. Denuder filter-pack
- 4. Combination of OC/EC-analysis and mass-determination (weighing)?

Energy research Centre of the Netherlands

www.ecn.ni

5. Pre-firing

23 7-7-2009

6. Filter brand



#### **ECN**

24

#### EAC2009 Artifacts

Subject of coming ANNUAL meeting of

Working-Group PM

European Aerosol Conference, EAC2009, Karlsruhe 5-9 September

Special Session on Artifacts

You can still submit contribution on web-site EAC2009

7-7-2009 Energy research Centre of the Netherlands www.ecn.nl

#### Addendum: automated on-line instruments

Advantage: Periodic blank-zeroing correction

Own experience in INTERCOMP2000 1) ACPM, R&P 5400 2) Steam Jet Collector

ACPM has/had too high blank for OC!? Steam Collector was too hard to handle at the time; recently modified

Does not have a collection substrate

25 7-7-2009 Energy research Centre of the Netherlands www.ecn.ni



A.6 Towards a Standardisation of Methods for Measuring Organic and Elemental Carbon within the EUSAAR network











#### 

**Requirement 2: Speciation of TC.** 

Distinguish between EC

directly emitted in the particulate form by combustion processes

and OC

from both natural and anthropogenic primary and secondary sources
















|   |                       |           | 17     |  |  |
|---|-----------------------|-----------|--------|--|--|
| There are no standards for atmospheric OC and EC.   |                       |           |        |  |  |
| But at least pure EC should be detected as 100% EC<br>Any organic molecule (or mixture) should be detected as 100% OC |                       |           |        |  |  |
| IMPROVE (up to 550°C): all OC does not evolve during step 1   |                       |           |        |  |  |
| NIOSH (up to 850°C): a fraction of EC can be comb   | usted during          | g the ste | p 1    |  |  |
|   | Carrier gas           | Temp •C   | Time s |  |  |
| EUSAAR_2 (up to 650°C): best compromise   | OC1_He                | 200       | 120    |  |  |
| max 2.5 ± 24 % of EC evolves in He  | OC2_He                | 300       | 150    |  |  |
| min 80% of OC evolves in He   | OC3_He                | 450       | 180    |  |  |
|   | OC4_He                | 650       | 180    |  |  |
|   | EC1_He/O2             | 500       | 120    |  |  |
|   | EC2_He/O2             | 550       | 120    |  |  |
|   | EC3_He/O <sub>2</sub> | 700       | 70     |  |  |
|   | EC4_He/O <sub>2</sub> | 850       | 80     |  |  |









## PEAN COMMISSION

Requirement 5: Sensitivity of the EC value to the position of the split point

The precision of the laser signal measurement translates into uncertainties in EC determination.

The temperature protocol should be such that the slope of the carbon peak evolving at the split point is as small as possible.

#### EUSAAR\_2

± 3% uncertainty in laser signal => ± 10% uncertainty in EC









## A.7 Comparison of EC/OC analytical methods within EMEP













| Table 2: Monitor<br>monitoring strat   | ring requirements for the various levels egy.   | specified by the EMEP   |
|--|---|---|
| Programme  | Parameters  | Measurement<br>period/Frequency                                   |
| Level 2 sites (in a<br>Particulate matter<br>PM mass<br>Gas particle ratio<br>Speciation vs size (Pl<br>and PM <sub>10</sub> ) | Iddition to level 1 parameters)           PM1, PM2,5         Therma           NH/NH4, HNOy/NO3,         Mg25         SO4 <sup>2</sup> , NO3, NH4, NN4, K*, C4 <sup>2</sup> , Mg <sup>25</sup> | Al-optical<br>24h/daily<br>(CI) Weekly/weekly                     |
| EC/OC<br>Programme   | EC, OC<br>Parameters  | Weekly/weekly<br>Weekly/weekly<br>Measurement<br>period/Frequency |
| Level 3 sites (do<br>Particulate matt  | not require all level 1 and level 2 param   | neters)   |

| Table 1.5: Sites rep<br>sampling | orting E<br>g period | EC and O | Cto EME           | ₽, induo | ding PM size fractions ar   |
|----------------------------------|----------------------|----------|-------------------|----------|---|
| Site (Country)                   | EC                   | OC       | PM <sub>2.5</sub> | PM 10    | Period  |
| Birkenes (Norway)                | Х                    | х        | X                 | X        | 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007,                   |
| Illmitz (Austria)                | Х                    | Х        | Х                 | Х        | 1999, 2000, 2002 <sup>1)</sup>                                    |
| Ispra (Italy)                    | х                    | Х        | Х                 | Х        | 2002 <sup>1)</sup> , 2004, 2004, 2005, 2006 <sup>2)</sup> , 2007, |
| Melpitz (Germany)                | Х                    | Х        | Х                 | Х        | 2006, 2007.   |



## CEN – meeting on EC/ OC - EUSAAR protocal for EC/ OC measurments

Why is there not yet a reference method for EC/OC measurements in EMEP?

✓ Substantial difficulties associated with sampling and subsequent analysis of EO OCe.g.

Positive and negative sampling artefacts
 Analytical challenges in separating EC and OC

✓ EC/ OC measurements was introduced to the monitoring strategy in 2004

✓ Only a few thermal-optical instruments were available in Europe at the time (2004)

✓ Awaiting the EUSAAR unified protocol

#### When will the EUSAAR unified protocol be implemented in EMEP?

✓ The EUSAAR\_2 temperature program is not yet officially included as the new protocol for EC/OCin EMEP but it is already beeing used, e.g. in the EMEP intensive measurements periods.

✓ 8 – 10 sites is expected to report EC/OC data to EMEP using EUSAAR\_2 within next 1 – 2 years.

## CEN – meeting on EC/ OC - Sampling equipment and analytical approach

Table 1.6: Sampling equipment and analytical approach used at he various sites sites reporting EC and OC to EMEP

| Site      | Sampling                  | Filter face           | Sampling         | Analytical              |
|-----------|---------------------------|-----------------------|------------------|-------------------------|
| (Country) | time/ Frequency           | velocity              | Equipment        | approach                |
| Birkenes  | Weekly/Weekly             | 53 cm s <sup>-1</sup> | Single filter    | Sunset TOT              |
| (Norway)  |                           |                       |                  | (quartz.par)            |
| Illmitz   | Every 6 <sup>th</sup> day | 54 cm s <sup>-1</sup> | Single filter    | VDI 2465                |
| (Austria) |                           |                       | -                | part 1                  |
| Ispra     | 24 hr, daily              | 20 cm s <sup>-1</sup> | Denuder          | Multi-step flash        |
| (Italy)   |                           |                       | (positive corr.) | heating <sup>1)2)</sup> |
| Melpitz   | 24 hr, daily              | 54 cm s <sup>-1</sup> | Single filter    | VDI 2465                |
| (Germany) |                           |                       |                  | part 2                  |

1. Two aliquots were analyzed: one from the plain filter, the other after baking for 2 hours in He/O<sub>2</sub> carrier gas at 340° C Charring-free ECfrom the latter.

2. Sunset dual optical analyzer from 2006.





too great a problem for OC and TC, but perhaps somewhat more challenging for EC









## CEN – meeting on EC/ OC - Summary

- 1. Carbonaceous particulate matter account for a substantial fraction of PM in the European rural background environment
- 2. EC/OC data reported to EMEP are based on a range of different methods which hampers the comparability
- 3. EMEP provides guidelines for how to perform sampling and analysis with respect to EC/OC, while awaiting the finalization of the unified EUSAAR prototoged
- prototocol
   Results obtained using the EUSAAR\_2 temperature program looks promising.
   The transition from currently applied NIOSH derived thermal optical approaches to EUSAAR\_2 ought to proceed rather smoothly
- Some concern is caused by the difficulties of using the full length EUSAAR\_2 temperature program in EC/OC monitors, an instrument wich appears to grow in popularity

## CEN – meeting on EC/ OC - Some questionmarks

•Attempts made to run the EUSAAR\_2 temperature program on the Sunset laboratories monitor have not been all successful, which is an drawback in order to obtain comparable data

•Could other programs than the EUSAAR\_2 protocol be preferred?

-The EC/OC monitors also provide  $\text{EC}_{\text{optical}}$  from which "  $\text{OC}_{\text{optical}}$  "can be derived

 Are the optical EC/OC comparable to the thermal-optical EC and OC?
 Could EC<sub>optical</sub> and "OC<sub>optical</sub>" be preferred due to their better detection limit (e.g. Saarikoski et al., 2008)

•Could BC derived from in situ measurements of the absorption coefficient (PSAP, MAAP) be preferred to thermal optical EC for BC.

## CEN – meeting on EC/ OC - What does EMEP require?

•Comparability •Cost Effective •Availability •Easy-to-operate

## A.8 EC Measurement – Current VDI Guidelines



### VDI 2465 part 1

- 1. Extract the sample with 2-propanol/toluene (1/1) at room temperature in a weighing bottle for 24h
- Pipette off the solvent from the bottle, dry the filter for 4 h under a nitrogen current in an opened exsiccator
- 3. Evaporate residues of the solvent and organic carbon by thermic desorption with nitrogen (carbon can be oxidised to CO<sub>2</sub> and then be analised by coulometric titration)
- 4. Oxidise EC to CO<sub>2</sub> and analise it by coulometric titration

#### Reactions during coulometric titration

The reaction gas is bubbled through a reaction cell containing an aqueous solution of bariumhydroxide which reacts with CO<sub>2</sub>:

2 OH<sup>+</sup> + Ba<sup>2+</sup> + CO<sub>2</sub> BaCO<sub>3</sub> + 2 H<sub>2</sub>O The consumed  $\rightarrow$  ions are regenerated electrochemically:

## lanuvnrw.







#### Results after different techniques to remove organic carbon Petzold, A.; Niessner, R.: Mikrochim. Acta <u>117</u>, 215 – 237 (1995) Sampling site: road with high traffic volume in Munich Sampling time: November 1992 to April 1993

| Removal method                                    | Average fraction of toal carbon |
|---|---------------------------------|
| Thermal desorption at 500 °C for 8 min with He    | 0,55 +/- 0,07                   |
| Solvent extraction with toluene/2-propanol        | 0,76 +/- 0,15                   |
| Solvent extraction followed by thermal desorption | 0,40 +/- 0,08                   |

## anuvnrw.

#### Disatvantages of the method

Apparatus is not computer-interfaced
 Indicated oven temperatures are wrong (construct a temperature sensor by yourself!)
 Extraction is difficult to handle (pipetting off the solvent), by far not complete (room temperature) and time consuming
 EC and OC cannot be analised in one step
 No automatic analysis possible

If analysis of EC and OC is recommended for every sample: No more than 8 to 10 samples can be analised per day with one Coulomat-apparatus

Advantage of the method: Extraction with an organic solvent reduces charring; for traffic influenced sites the results are realistic

## anuvnrw.

#### VDI 2465 part 2 (thermographic method)

Organic carbon is thermically desorbed with helium (oxidation of organic compounds to  $CO_2$  with a CuO/CeO<sub>2</sub> catalyst is possible) at temperatures up to 600 °C (heating is performed in two steps)

Elemental carbon is oxidised with 20% oxygen in helium at high temperatures (700  $^{\circ}$ C) CO<sub>2</sub>, formed by combustion of organic compounds and elemental carbon is analised by its infrared absorption

Method is fast, handling of samples is easy

Charring is not controlled results may be too high (see Niessner and Petzold)

Methane and polystyrene are used as standards for carbon and OC

## lanuvnrw.





| "Vienna intercompariso  | n" 1999   | Atm. Env. <u>35,</u> 2111-2121 (2001)   |
|---|-----------|---|
|   | method    | remarks   |
| Samples were taken at Frankturter   | Ext+therm | VDI2465,1   |
| volume in Berlin, in November 1998  | Ext+therm | VDI2465,1   |
| volume in Benin, in November 1770   | Ext+therm | extraction+thermic desorption   |
| A high volume campler with a PM10   | Therm     | VDI2465,2   |
| sampling head (DIGITEL DHA89) was   | Therm     | VDI2465,2   |
| used  | Therm/Ar  | VDI2465,2 Ar as inert gas   |
|   | Therm     | OC: 590°C, 2x EC: 850°C,O <sub>2</sub>  |
| <ul> <li>Dust was collected on pre-fired</li> </ul>   | ох        | OC: 340°C, O <sub>2</sub> EC: 650°C,O <sub>2</sub>                                    |
| (850°C) quartz fibre filters  | ox+Therm  | He/O <sub>2</sub> 80/20 130, 230, 340°C, He 650°C for OC,<br>He/O2 80/20 650°C for EC |
|   | ох        | Temperature of OC/EC split not mentioned!   |
| <ul> <li>Four filter cuts with a diameter of 1<br/>cm of each sample were distributed to</li> </ul> | тот       | OC: He, 820°C, EC: 2%O <sub>2</sub> , 850°C, optical<br>transmission control          |
| each laboratory   | тот       | OC: He, 900°C, EC: 5%O <sub>2</sub> , 900°C, optical<br>transmission control          |
| <ul> <li>13 laboratories participated</li> </ul>  | тот       | OC: He, 600°C, EC: He/air, 850°C, optical<br>transmission control                     |
| <ul> <li>15 results with 13 methods were</li> </ul>   | ox+TOT    |   |
| reported  | TOR       | OC: He, 550°C, EC: 2%O2, 800°C, optical reflectance<br>control                        |

#### Comparison of VDI 2465 part 1 and 2

PM10 Samples from a traffic influenced site and a remote site, parameters of regression

|                            |           | EC          | тс          |
|----------------------------|-----------|-------------|-------------|
| Axis intercept $a \pm s_a$ | µg/filter | -7 ± 10     | -19 ± 22    |
| Slope $b \pm s_b$          |           | 0.99 ± 0.02 | 1.00 ± 0.07 |
| Correlation coefficient r  |           | 0.99        | 0.99        |
| Mean of coulometry         | μg/filter | 408         | 809         |
| Mean of<br>thermography    | μg/filter | 397         | 789         |

#### Correlation is astonishing!!

anuvnrw.



#### **Careful interpretation**

Even with identical methods some results differed by far (e. g. for the laboratories using the VDI 2465 part 1 method)

Highest results were obtained with thermic desorption without optical control

Are the differences even higher at remote sites?



## A.9 The "Hungarian" experience

Contribution to the EC/OC preparatory workshop The "Hungarian" experience

> András Gelencsér Veszprém, HUNGARY

# Outline

- Source apportionment studies of EC/OC based on 2-year aerosol observations at six European sites – CARBOSOL
- Studies on biomass burning brown carbon properties with MPI – SMOCC
- Studies on properties of tar balls in biomass smoke – SAFARI



Pio, C., Legrand, M., Oliveira, T., Afonso, J., Santos, C., Caseiro, A., Fialho, P., Barata, F., Puxbaum, H., Sanches-Ochoa, A., Kasper-Giebl, A., Gelencsér, A., Preunkert, S., Schock, M., Climatology of aerosol composition (organic versus inorganic) at non-urban areas on a West-East transect across Europe, J. Geopys. Res. 2007 doi:10.1029/2006JD008038

Gelencsér, A., May, B., Simpson, D., Sánchez-Ochoa, A., Kasper-Giebl, A., Puxbaum, H., Caseiro, A., Pio, C., Legrand, M, Source apportionment of PM2.5 organic aerosol over Europe: primary/ secondary, natural/ anthropogenic, fossil/biogenic origin, J. Geopys. Res. 2007 doi:10.1029/2006JD008094











## A.10 OC/EC/TC analysis: the Spanish experience









#### Problems / Incidences (IJA-CSIC)

- Incidences refer mainly to the <u>combustion oven</u>:
   Progressive increase in oven pressure (PSIG=1 to 3 / 9 months)
- Resulting in need to change the oven (2 times in 1.5 years)

- Potential causes (we believe): Type of samples (ceramic area with high % of refractory material)
- Use of HCI to eliminate CC













## A.11 Measurement of Carbonaceous Aerosol by Thermo-Optical Methods: the Portuguese experience



















































## A.12 The French Contribution







95







II. Thermal / Optical / Thermo-optical EC-OC methods: Evidence of a source sensitivity











**III. EC-OC methods in marine environments** 











| MARINE AEROSOLS   | % OC  | in $PM_1$ Sea salt concentration |
|---|---|----------------------------------|
| May 2002  | January 2003                                  | June2003                         |
|   | 10. 20. 30. 40. 50. 60. 70. 80.               | [% Organic Carbon]               |
| Marine Organics<br>= not observed<br>by AMS<br>techniques | Require TC<br>measurements<br>+<br>Optical BC | O'Dowd et al., GRL, 2008         |
|   |   |                                  |



#### BEC/OC Workshop

#### FRENCH CONTRIBUTION

## **CONCLUSIONS 1/2**

Regular intercomparison exercices for TC between 2 instruments (Coulometer & Sunset lab instrument) showing good results

EC-OC measurements at LSCE from filter samples are performed using systematically 3 different techniques: THERMAL, OPTICAL, THERMO-OPTICAL

On-line EC-OC measurements show satisfactory comparison with other on-line instruments (Aethalometer) and filter-based EC-OC measurements, although need to be corrected from blank values.



| JRC ies | EC/OC | Workshop |
|---------|-------|----------|
|---------|-------|----------|

FRENCH CONTRIBUTION

### CONCLUSIONS 2/2 EC-OC from (2-STEP) THERMAL method

 SENSITIVE to fossil fuel (traced by sulfate) in rural sites in France & E. Mediterranean

EC-OC from THERMO-OPTICAL method

Influenced by absorbance properties

 Influenced by the last He Plateau (870°C probably to high / 550°C maybe too low) / EUSAAR\_2 may be a good compromise

NOT ACCURATE for samples with little amount of EC (& high BC/TC ratios). Should be used only for TC and combined with Absorbance measurements to derive EC, OC.

#### BC from OPTICAL method

VERY SENSITIVE (remote regions)

7-λ feature VERY USEFUL FOR AIR QUALITY PURPOSE

## A.13 Measurements of Organic and Elemental Carbon in UK Air Quality Networks



NPL®

**UK Particles Network** 

- Currently managed and operated by NPL and King's College London
- Particle number concentration (currently 4 sites), size distribution (3), sulphate, nitrate and chloride (PM<sub>10</sub>) daily (3), nitrate (PM<sub>2.5</sub>) hourly (3)

• OC/EC:

- 2002 2007 hourly R & P (Thermo) 5400 analysers (4)
- 2007 Partisol daily filter sampling with lab analysis at NPL (3)



NPL 0

## Measurement of OC/EC

- Harwell (rural site)
- North Kensington (urban background site)
- Marylebone Road (kerbside site)
- Daily PM<sub>10</sub> samples (24 m<sup>3</sup>) are collected using Partisol 2025 samplers onto quartz (Pallflex Tissuquartz) filters, and are then analysed at NPL using a Sunset Laboratory carbon analyser







Protocol: "Quartz"

| Carrier gas         | Temperature plateau duration (s) | Temperature set point (°C) |
|---------------------|----------------------------------|----------------------------|
| Helium              | 70                               | 310                        |
|                     | 60                               | 475                        |
|                     | 60                               | 615                        |
|                     | 105                              | 870                        |
| 1% Ox in He         | 60                               | 550                        |
|                     | 60                               | 625                        |
|                     | 60                               | 700                        |
|                     | 60                               | 775                        |
|                     | 110                              | 890                        |
|                     |                                  |                            |
| Charring correction | Transmittance                    |                            |
| Principal calibra   | ation with sucrose solution      | NPL                        |




















# A.14 Swedish experience Eusaar\_2 source apportionment









## Grafitisation

CO<sub>2</sub> mixed with H<sub>2</sub> over iron catalyst.





### **Co-workers**

- Erik Swietlicki (supervisor)
- Kristina Stenström (supervisor)
- Erik Nilsson (PhD-student)

## Thanks

#### **European Commission**

## EUR 23992 EN – Joint Research Centre – Institute for Environment and Sustainability

Title: Measurement of Elemental and Organic Carbon in Europe Author(s): Thomas A.J. Kuhlbusch, Annette Borowiak, Andras Gelenscer, Johan Genberg, Dieter Gladtke, Willy Maenhaut, Casimiro Pio, Olga Popoviecheva, Jean P. Putaud, Paul Quincey, Jean Sciare, Harry ten Brink, Mar Viana, Karl Espen Yttri Luxembourg: Office for Official Publications of the European Communities 2009 – 117 pp. EUR – Scientific and Technical Research series – ISSN 1018-5593 ISBN 978-92-79-11294-2 DOI 10.2788/34791

#### Abstract

The new Air Quality Directive 2008/50/EC is asking in Annex IX that elemental (EC) and organic (OC) carbon as well as soluble ions should be measured at selected background sites in each Member State. Several methods (thermal, optical or photo-acoustic methods) to determine elemental and organic carbon exist which do not always deliver comparable results. European experts in EC/OC measurements met at the JRC in Ispra on 10th and 11th February 2009 to discuss during a workshop the best suitable European method.

The main tasks of this workshop were

- to discuss the advantages and disadvantages of different methods for the determination of OC and EC,
- to get information from the Member States on existing methods or even standards being applied,
- to initiate discussions on a preferred basic method to be standardised by CEN within the scope of Directive 2008/50/EC.

The conclusions of this workshop will directly feed into CEN and the corresponding Working Group to clearly define their task for European wide standardisation and hence harmonisation.

#### How to obtain EU publications

Our priced publications are available from EU Bookshop (http://bookshop.europa.eu), where you can place an order with the sales agent of your choice.

The Publications Office has a worldwide network of sales agents. You can obtain their contact details by sending a fax to (352) 29 29-42758.

The mission of the JRC is to provide customer-driven scientific and technical support for the conception, development, implementation and monitoring of EU policies. As a service of the European Commission, the JRC functions as a reference centre of science and technology for the Union. Close to the policy-making process, it serves the common interest of the Member States, while being independent of special interests, whether private or national.







Publications Office Publications.europa.eu